A WORKSHOP WILL BE CONDUCTED BY
THE JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL.

Meeting Date: Monday, July 14, 2025, AT 10:00 A.M.

Place: Council Chambers, Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney
Government Bldg.
358 3rd Avenue Ridgeland, SC 29936

Watch In Person or Live via YouTube at:
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmlogX05cKAsHmM_ggXCJIA

For more information, call 843-717-3696. Instructions may also be found
at the Jasper County website www.jaspercountysc.gov



https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA
http://www.jaspercountysc.gov/

JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL
SPECIAL CALLED WORKSHOP

=< = X %%

Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney Government Bldg
358 3rd Avenue Ridgeland, SC 29936

Monday, July 14, 2025
Agenda

10:00 AM

o Call to Order by Chairman Kemp

Clerk’s Report of Compliance with the Freedom of Information Act.

In accordance with South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, Section 30-4-80(d), as amended, notification of the
meeting and the meeting agenda were posted at least 24 hours prior to the meeting on the County Council
Building at a publicly accessible place, on the county website, and a copy of the agenda was provided to the
local news media and all person’s or organizations requesting notification.

o Pledge to the Flag and Invocation
o Approval of Agenda
o Workshop Topics:

> Roads

» Road Signs

» Records Retention

o General Discussion

o Adjourn

Special Accommodations Available Upon Request to Individuals with Disabilities, please contact the
Jasper County ADA & Civil Rights Coordinator, Tisha Williams in person at 358 Third Avenue, Ridgeland,
South Carolina, by telephone at (843) 717-3690 or via email at jcadministrator@jaspercountysc.qgov no
later than 48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting

1
Agenda—07.14.2025


mailto:jcadministrator@jaspercountysc.gov

201200001666 04/03/2012 AT 12 J w_py
OR Volume 0825  Page 0437 - 0438 DATE___ S/ /3 r2

A CERTIFED

ORIZED:

Filed for Record in JASPER COUNTY ROD Al
Ordinances Fee; 50.00 7

STATE OF SOUTH CARO
COUNTY OF JASPER

ORDINANCE 2012 -05

AN ORDINANCE
OF JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL

To adopt The General Records Retention
Schedule for County Records (2002) and to
adopt Section 2-6 of the Code of
Ordinances of Jasper County.

WHEREAS, it is important for the administration of the Jasper County government that there
be a retention schedule for documents accumulated by the County to insure that all necessary
documents are retained, but that unnecessary and burdensome records be destroyed on a
timely basis; and

WHEREAS, South Carolina Department of Archives and History has adopted a recommended
county records retention schedule; and

WHEREAS, Jasper County Council finds that it is in the best interest of Jasper County to
adopt that schedule;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Jasper County Council in council duly
assembled and by the authority of the same:

1. Chapter 2 Articles I of the Codes of Ordinances of Jasper County, as amended, is
amended to add Section 2-6 to the end thereof to read as:

Sec 2-6. Records Retention

The South Carolina Department of Archives and History General Records
Retention Schedule for County Records (2002), a copy of which is attached
hereto as Schedule “A” is hereby adopted as the General Records Retention
Schedule for County Records of Jasper County except for the records of the Clerk
of Court, which is governed by other schedules. Notwithstanding any other
provision hereof, whenever federal or state law or order of a court having
jurisdiction over Jasper County require that certain records be maintained for a
longer period than required by the General Record Retention Schedule for
County Records (2002), such records shall be retained for the longer period.

Poge 1 of 2

Dirdinanc= 2NE7T . NS Ot %4 1







O

r Instrument Volume  Page
201200001666 OR 0825 0438

LY

2. All general records retention schedules heretofore previously adopted by Jasper County
are hereby repealed.

3 This ordinance shall take effect upon approval by Council.

JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL

ATTEST:
ST,J;%. N

dith M. Frank
lerk to Council

First Reading: __02/21/2012
Second Reading: 03/05/2012
Public Hearings: 04/02/2012
Adopted: __04/02/2012

It is required that the following Exhibit be attached before the second reading:
Schedule “A”

The South Carolina Department of Archives and History
General Records Retention Schedule for County Records (2002)

Reviewed for formjand draftsmanship by the Jasper County Attorney.

Page2of 2

g PO 1R ANITN hr







— General Records Retention Schedules
for County Records

This is only the Table of Content
Please go to the Archival website
For your specific retention schedules

www.scdah.org

For more information contact |
Richie Wiggins/State Archives
(803) 896-6119

Archives and Records Management Division
8301 Parklane Road
Columbia, South Carolina 29223-4905







General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

General records retention schedules
for county records 2002

Table of contents

LT OUCEION ...coes e s ri et rsmen st e sb e bbb Ae RS RSE TR SRR S Pe AR RO RS R AR RO Er S 1
PUDPOSE «.co.ociriinicnsininriisessisssisistotsasssisstasssssinssssstosnsssssssasssnsnse s sossessssasas sasassssorasanssessnessesadsinss st pasas 1
Statutory QULNOTILY ..ottt s e s R0 l
Delinitions of SChedules ...t e 1
SPeCial PrOVISIONS ...t st s s st s s s s R st s e 1

OPUNE QUL oottt s sra s ssr s b o4 14 E b R bR s e R b s ras s st st et st et s 1

UNIQUE FBEOIAS ....oviriciisiecreiiram e rsssssiesssss st absns sbsssasrasssssass ssaasssastsnssssassassesasesassssasssssnss 1

Confidential and restricted reCords ... sons sssssess 2

Exceptions to minimum retention Periods ... s s sssses 2

0 o o o e e e e e o 2
To whom do the schedules apPly? ... srossrsees 2
To whom do the schedules ROt APPLYT ... s 2
General schedule FOrmat ... s s s sasrsn s 2
Explanation of micrographics terms used in retention statements..............coviseinrirrenencs 3
Using this schedule effectiVely ... st sesssreasssines 3
How to use the general schedules.............iiiini s, trovessnnae s 3
Records disposition PrOCESS ... srsss st s seasbss vt spsna s ssas 3
Contacting the State Archives — when and whom? ..., 4
“Report on Records Destroyed™ — form and insStructions ... cnseenecens 5
Table OF VOIUITIES ..ottt it b s s e ss s st sasssss st s basas s sesenasssssanasssesasas 7
Flowchart of records disposal PIOCESS ...t s s s ses 8
General retention schedule for county records..........cin e, 9

12-500 Introduction and general matters; application of schedule. ... 9

Subarticle 1 Register of Deeds

12-501.1 Grantor and Grantee Index to CONVEYANCES ......ccoviiivensnnirismverisivesensscoressssanas 9
12-501.2 Conveyances (Deeds, Titles to Real EState) ......ccoccvecerininenicecnnicenscnscnsineanns 9
12-501.3 Mortgagor and Mortgagee Index to Real Estate Mortgages ..o 8
12-501.4 Real Estate Mortgages and SatisSfactions ............ccomrcininiimmnncesnseisonsens 9
12-501.5 INAEX 1O PIALS ....corceeecermriresci et niss st s sassbabsnse s s s bbb s s 9
12-501.6 Plats ..o et e et s AR e 10
12-501.7 Index to Miscellaneous Records .......uminsssons 10
12-501.8 Miscellaneous Records ... TR——— 10
12-501.9 Index to Uniform Commercial Code Financing Statements ... 10
12-501.10 Uniform Commercial Code Financing Statements..........ccconnninineneriseninns 10
12:801.1 1 CRAMETS «.ec.oncesnersmasifon i cciisgivboss R i eessonbf iR bnsrsosasnsssssrsmsssssssasossstssmsisssst 10

12-501.12 Chattel Mortgages and INAeXes ... 11
12-501.13 Index to Federal Tax Liens .........cccoevciinicncccnnnnnnescnsessnsssessnssssessssissssssssnses 11






O

General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

12-501.14 Federal Tax LIBNS .......ccoveecrecnrnnsinrecmesnsiesiasssssisssscssesesessesseesesesesessessssssssssssessesssssosesssess 11
12-501.15 Index t0 State Tax LIENS .....cccovvrrruriieiernneiiecisscssicseesesess s esesesscssessssesssesssseessssssssesene 11
12-501.16 State Tax LIENS.......oceccercrcnriennranntresesinsesss e tsssisessesssese s s sassesserssssssssessssssesssssseeees 11
12-501.17 Index to Mechanics LIBNS ..ot ee e sesecosssssssesse s s saresssmsssss s 11
12-501.18 Mechanics LIBNS ... e esecesssscesessessssessessasensassessasssosssssenss 11
Subarticle 2 Sheriff/Detention

12-502.1 INCIdENE REPOTLS ...couiveririsceiriirisirisiirrearresenressareseansssss st cesssssessessssssnsesssssssesssssssssssssssessens 12
12-502.2 Criminal History RECOTAS .......cccvvviinirririiireressrereneeesesssessesenesseseessesssssssssessssssosss s sssssens 12
12-502.3 Writ Book (Receipt Book for Civil Papers Served) ..........cooovereeecessvssssesosssessosssesssnns 12
12-502.4 EXECUNION BOOKS ...ttt ssses s ssesseeesesssssssssssssseessesssssessssssessssssoesssosssesns 12
12-502.5 Tax EXCUtION BOOKS ...vcouereeereiriceiriesecinsen s s eess sesessessecseseesessssssssseesssssosseseseesans 12
12-502.6 Sale BOOK ...ttt sses st s sest bt sssss s sss s secosesessee stassmsenemmssnssmseesesssesns 13
12-502.7 JAIl BOOK .o1eeviiriritiemsinnnranenresennsessiessesse s tesstsasbsssteeensnecasessesssssnsassssnsnsssesssesmsesesessesnssneseessesssses 13
12-502.8 Juvenile BOOKING RECOTAS........covucririetitt st essessssssteossenessssssssssssssnssnsesas 13
12-502.9 JUVENILE CASE FIIES ...c.cvrvevereeceeeierccsriserisitstteeeeeneseesssssesesssssstenesssossssesssesese e see e e s e eas 13
12-002.10 CaSE FIES «...ov ettt tecennistressssisisensssasasases s st ssss s s etsenanesesessssesensssressasasssssasens 13
12-502.11 Evidence Case Files ... vssisssssossesssssssssassssesssssssssssessesens 13
12-502.12 BOOKING REPOTLS .....oueriseriiiiisirisinncesconrcens s s sssss s sssssessesenssssossessssasssemsssssssssesasssesessessns 13
12-502.13 AITest Cards .........ccivsinsieriisescmmmmsssssssssssssssmsssissssssessiasssssesiossesssssssssessossssnsesssessnsssseseseses 14
12-502.14 FINBErpPrint FIlEs ........cviuiiiiccmrrmnccnnisnene e cssissssssssssssssssesssssssssesseseessosesossesmsesesessssssses 14
12-502.13 MU SHOLS «..ovvurirrcrivisinisscistiseitasnssess s rsssassssssessessessessesassssssesossssmseesenene s senssensssnens 14
12-502.16 Inmate Medical FOTMS ......co. et csasssssssasssseessssns s sisssssssssses 14
12-502.17 Inmate ReqUESE FOTTNS ....ccuuiiceririecrecrnnrinsnsserensnessse e sesssssssssssasossisssssssssssssssessesssssseses 14
12-502.18 Inmate ViSIOr LOG ..ucviiirivriicrncermrnrnsosseesenisiastnssssssssns s sssessosssssseesecssssnssssssssssessssssssssoses 14
12-502.19 Inmate ACCOUNLING RECOMS ......cccovuriimierrstintie s et sressasossnesssnnssesssesesssassassseses 14
[2:502.20 ATTESE WAETANIS o ervrrreveearrmerreesesssecsssssessasssssssssssssseesssses soossssssssoesesesstsmsessoeeseees 15
12-502.21 Daily SRift REPOIt........cor ittt rssssssssscsssasessssssessesseseassasoens 15
12-502.22 Training Files ...ttt s st sssssss st st sinsstsssessasessesnsesessssesens 15
12-502.23 DISpatch RECOTAS ....ucuiiiircisciscerecrnincesansrsissnnsssssessessseas s s sssssssmsenesesesesessse s sesseas 15
12-502.24 Complaint Cards .........ccucimernismmisnsinimememsresssssessesisossesssassasssssssssssseseseossesssesssess 15
12-502.25 Polygraph ReCOrdS .........cuiiiiirieieiiisssiscencnensirsnsissssnssssessssssssssssssassmsssensesesssesesesesesrens 15
12-502.26 SLED Lab REPOIS ....ciiirtieirrcremnis e ssssseirasisssssssssssssssssssssessssssssssossosssessssssesssssssssans 15
12-502.27 Property RECRIDLS .....cueiccccmirinsiensinissraesmmssesssssisssssssosssossesemesssessessesesseesssssmessssssoss 16
12-502.28 Radio LOGS ...coovviiriinieiiitiisinceimnccnrn e csrssssssssstssseessesssssessssssassesssessastssssosssssssssessssanes 16
12-502.29 SUMMONS AN AITESL .....oocuiririinccersirsssssssressessameressssesssnas s sss s ssereonsesssensssesssessseasssesssees 16
12-502.30 Uniform Crime RePOrts ... ..ot sessssseneceessssssessssmesessssssssas 16
Subarticle 3 County Council/Administration

12-503.1 County Council Meeting Tapes. .......ceceeecermrrrvsiernresesieesmessssisssessssssesseseesssssesssessssssssnesees 16
12-503.2 County Council MINUEES. ... emeriseesrermmmmmassiserisssnssreosesssessensesessesssssssssssssssessesssens 16
12-503.3 OFAINANCES. .ovvverrcericrerserereresssesessssesssssssssssesssssesmsssssseessssessesssssseeresemeess L e scrsn 17
12-503.4 RESOIULONS. ..oucorieririieccereeercrenierisisnsanssssssssssssesssssssssssemrmsessssssssasessesessssssssessssssssessassssssssees 17
12-503.5 ANNUAL BULGELS. .....coveriviieinicirecertirnnssre e sessssesssessss s eessesssesessensssssssssassaossansonsssssssens 17
12-503.6 Audit REPOTLS. ....ocvvverirsiiisieiiscnsisncncnnscsirssssesisesnsesssessssissssssessssesmsesessssssssssesssssssssasssses 17
12-503.7 General LEAGErs. ........ccovvmiunmeeronmserne s css st sensssssessssesseesessensssssnessssssssosssos s ssss s 17






General Records Retentfon Schedules for County Records

12-503.8 ClAIIMIS. 1oveiviiieniitrinisisisss st ssts st sesees s sonsesas s ss s s assassssansnsesssatstssnsntan st asesanscnsasasansnnnes 17
12-503.9 Paid INVOICES ....ooeiiiiiiireie ittt e snrn st st sre e nsssss s sbnar e sansasanasninsnacs 17
12-503.10 PUTChASE OITAELS ....oovieeeirrieencssereiernssareiasess s e snasserssnssstesssssssesasansssassesessssssssssssssssnsssssssnss 18
12-503. 11 RECEIPES 1ovviiirriimiiisirsismsssibitas e s sessssssssasssssssssesesssasssesasasesassssssasesnass 18
12-503.12 Banking Records ........cccuirimmmimimnii s s ssssssssssessassseses 18
12-503.13 Agenda Packets (Council, Boards, and CommIiSSIONS) ..........ccorevieermermmnsseserersensassnsesenes 18
12-503.14 Various Board and Commission MInNULES ............cccunieiseimnccrisseesesnecssiesisssssesssssaoss 18
12-503.15 General Correspondence and Subject Files ... 18
Subarticle 4 Finance
12-504.1 AUGIE REPOTIES .c..vociviireifirinicisnss sonarssesesnstsnsssssasrsssssssstaesssassatansassonsatssssat conss esssssssesnsbss A 19
12-504.2 General LEdEErS ......ccvimiviiiiiiiinaremsiosiniessessransmescsssmsessessesnessesasasassesonsesossarseassrscnes 19
12-504.3 Annual BUdBELS .......ccovminiiiiiiiniii s s ssasssssasssss et ssssasnsssesenses 19
12-504.4 Payroll REEISIEL .......covrreeeerrcccrirersesesrrecsscresecereresrassasesssssassssssssssssssarasssssnsassssssessesessasansessssnes 19
12-504.5 Payroll Check Registers ... s esssssssssssasesesens 20
12-504.6 South Carolina Retirement System Quarterly Report.........coeveivniereeierensescsseressesesssss 20
12-504.7 Deduction REBISIEIS .....cocvevrrrereeccrrrnrrernmssesssssssssssssesssasarissastasssnssasenses s sssssssssssssessassnssssnsses 20
12-504.8 Account Payable Check REegIStars ........ccoivieeierrriecnirrinersnssssnesrssesesvansessssassssesessesesssns 20
12-504.9 Banking RECOTAS .....covciiieiirinrrncsnnrrsssissessssssessersssssessessasessassssssesssissensessasssssssssasssanssssases 20
12-504.10 CHAIMS .ottt veccs et s ssra et abebastesssesssssasssrsrst sbssbsbarbrtsabebestentsbaseseasssbonesssaratatas 20
12-504.11 Revenue Sharing Claims ......ciccnicnineecencnneecnninnsssssesssssessesesssacsssassessesscasessenmeas 20
12-504.12 Receipts {(Receipt Carbons) .......ouumimiiiimiimimemimssmmnmimismsssims s sssasons 20
12-504.13 W-2 FOITNIS ...vorretirieresiernrininiesissssisiesisssestssosissssnsesresbesssasssasassssssessessarssssmsssssonss reesenensbenis 21
12-504.14 BUAEEL FILES ..oovnrvciviciiiiiiiisititntinsiecer e rnenaesnaesessassessnssossasessesssassesersnssassesessesensesersaen 21
12-504.15 Chart Of ACCOUIS ......erriierececrceerrcerressessesssssssessraseeserssssssssesiasessssssessserassessrassnsessssasssessaasss 21
12-504.16 FIXEA ASSELS ....coouceirieircniieeiisisntissicsnes e seassnssasassssnsresssssasssssssasssssssensassssnsassasssssssssensnssnas 21
12-504.17 Grant FIIES ....c.c.oocvriiriieiniiiirecni e s sesseseseessasaesrassessnassarsssasssrssessasassasanssenssesenssssesassn 21
12-504.18 JOUINAl ENIIES ovevvivierierirrireressesrsosssnsessisossessasssssssersssestssssssssssssmsessasssesssnssnsassessssssnsasasbones 21
12-504.19 Balance SHEELS .......covvuiiriieemititsicsencinenraresseerasessssssseessssessssasssssassssssssessassasssossassssassesssssersees 21
12-504.20 Trial Balances.......c.cccocereireecrerccreecmremerransiisssssssersrsessssssssesstessamssssssessesssssssssasssssasessssssonss 22
12-504.21 Landfill Billing Invoices and Weight Tickets..........connsmmonmsmmmimimmsimsmmsim 22
Subarticle 5 Purchasing
12-505.1 ReQUISTHIONS ...cvviiieiiiiiiincs it i ssssssrssst s sreerssenssesssesesassseas sesse s stmesesssstsssoasesesasassenes 22
12-505.2 PUICRase OTAerS.......ouceiiisiimiitsicammmrieremsecranesensssssssssssssssssssssssisssessassassessssssssessasessssssssanes 22
12-505.3 Paid INVOICES ....oeeiiiieirinitieiisas s st s st sces s seessasssasensass s sssesspssasasssnsnsesansserasssassssnce 22
12-805.4 Bids ..vvieunieeirvnrciicniennniisisssremie s sasssiesessassssssatons sossssassessssasassesssessasassestsssensessssesessssassantsnsis 22
12-505.5 VENAOT FILES ...ttt ssvevee s st sas s sess s et st s s s sam s eress e as s ssnbaseestsssssnnen 22
12-505.6 CONIACES ... coviviieieiricrienisessesirise e isssensesseassassiessesssssssessansssenes st e sssessssseseassssssanssssessnasassnsens 23
Subarticle 6 Personnel
12-506.1 Application File (Not Hired). ......cconmevconrcrrnrninersnresneisensseninssesssesessesens R 23
12-506.2 EMployment Files. ..ot s eessonmssassssssssassssssssassst sssses 23
12-506.3 TIME CATAS. ...ovuercrerccrersiesseerasseesssesessisnsasiesssessssssesesssssssss sssssse vessabessabessasessssesassssasssssssasss 23
12-506.4 TIME SHEELS. ..ot essesssessssessassssesessessassesasssssaenssssasessssasssasense 23

12-506.5 State and Local Government Information Reports (EEO-4) .......ccovervvccnrrerernrccenrinnes 23






General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

12-506.6 Earnings RECOI .....covviviiiirecnrnreinsisnsssnssssenee s sssssesssssssssssssesssssessessssrssssessssosssssesns 23
12-506.7 Deduction RegISIErs.........icvwceerurmeneeniiisinicnsississssisssssessessesssssssssssssssostseseeessssessssssseeesoos 23
12-506.8 Leave Records ... s isvssssssesesesseeessesesosssassssssssasessasesssssssss s ssens 24
12-506.9 Employee Insurance FIles ..o sssessessessecseeseesssesseossessssssssoseenes 24
12-506.10 Log and Summary of Occupational Iliness and Injuries .............ccoeerevereereeecsesvssssersrnns 24
12-506.11 Workman's Compensation ReCOPUS ... meieiieivinieisie e eesresseenssessesesorssssessees 24
12-506.12 Grievance Hearing FIIES ... reecnes st issnsese e semsessesessesssessssssssssorseenes 24
Subarticle 7 Auditor
12-507.1 Auditor's Tax DUPIICALES. ........c.verrvmrrcernemiesierirsseemsrssserssssesseeseseesesssssssesssrssssssssssssossons 24
12-507.2 Auditor's Tax Duplicates (Motor VEhICLES). .......cuuuieeireeierirnesnecsecnecsssessnsssnessemsmnesesssssnees 25
12-507.3 Tax REIUINS. ..ooiviieiinsiisisincencrrnncesessssisssssessstsabess et sessrsssssosssesscasssstsessssensenssssssssasesssossases 25
12-507.4 Auditor's Conveyance BOOKS .......c..coiiiniimnseesessssscneesssssssssssssssssssssssssssassess 25
12-507.5 Vehicle REGISITAON c....uuccuvuiueririnsinininnssosessensssssss s sssssesssesessessssssress anssssssesesssemesssssssases 25
12-507.6 List Of BOA OWIIELS «....eveeienetreneeceenis st rssssasesse s ssssesesossssenessessessesssnsesasssssnssssssses 25
12-507.7 AbStracts of DUPICALES .....c.c.coruirrrrinernrctisresssessissrisisesesesses s seesesassassensessessassersesssssssssoses 25
12-507.8 Abstracts 0f Real PIOPEILY ...c.cccouciccccrrisinieininninsenssssvesssesssessesssossssenssesssssenesssesssasesens 25
12-507.9 Abstracts Of Personal PrOPETLY .........ccuriemicincnnsseesecsinceesescsssssssessessssssesssssssesesssssessens 25
12-507.10 Abstract OF ADIIONAIS ........ccecceverrenmimssisssiennernsrensesssesessissesssssesssssesensessesssssssessmmssnsssmssans 26
12-507.11 AbStracts OF ADALEIMENES .......ouviiiveeirermrecemnscrssesireesss s s ssessssssessssssssessssesssssessssssesss essaees 26
12-507.12 ADSLracts Of PENalties. ... s ssersssssessesssssssssssssssessssssessessessesss 26
12-507.13 Homestead Exemption APPHCIONS. ....cvc.eeeevenrresrinesiverseerscsseeseseeneessesssesssssssssessesssssseses 26
12-507.14 ADEIMENES ..civiiiciicisisesiersneereseeesasssesiaisisssssrarenssstrmsessssssssessssssesamessssssersssessssseseas S e renese 26
12-507.15 Abstracts of Annual SEtIEIMENLS ... oo sencsssessssssssonsemssesseesssssessssns 26
12-507.16 Affidavit and Notification of Sales of MOtor VEhicles .............vvvvevereeremrernesressesssesssens 26
12-507.17 Affidavit of Motor Vehicle High Mileage ............cccoovirisiiririeieeeesieseseseseescesessssssssssseses 27
12-507.18 Auditor's Monthly REPOILS ..........uvuuurmsemeiesessssiscssessssssssscssssassssersssesssesssomsesessssessseseses 27
12-507.19 Business Personal Property REIUIDS ........cocireii s ceicerereteseeseseeesssssssssesssosnssssssenes 27
12-507.20 Business Personal Property Assessment RECOIS .........o.cuveeecerorceireussssssnmssesssaseesssssesssnns 27
12-507.21 Supplemental Tax REIUINS ........ccouumrmmmiinimmmersmnssessessesssssssssssssssestssesssssssssssssssestrees 27
12-507.22 ROIDECKS ...couvvriirienniniieninissisessisssnsscsenssisssssssssssssssssssssssssssssosmmsssassessesssmsssmeenssassesssassases 27
12-507.23 Homestead EXxemption RECOTAS .........cccivvrirnierniirecrerssiscessesesssonssssasssssseessessesessssases 27
12-507.24 Military Personnel Automobile Tax EXemPUONS ...........ccevvevvereierenrensersenssesesssesesenanne 28
12-507.25 Mobile HOME RECOIAS........corormirrrcieninincieirsssiem s ssesssesesesessessansessssssssssnssesssssesssens 28
12-507.268 REFUNAS 1ottt st sasssssssssassasensssesneseesseasssmseseseesnssasseses 28
12-507.27 Property Tax Returns 0n AIFCTaft ..o siscsesssesecorsnsssssssesssessssassssesns 28
12-507.28 List of Deceased County RESIAENLS ........ccovveriveemeeeieecessesee e seeeesesssesssssssesesesssesssssssssesssss 28
12-507.29 AdAress CHANEES ..........cccreerrirmrrnnirnarmssessssesssessssosssssssssnsenersensssnseseesseesssssssssssssssssssnens 28
12-507.30 Vehicle LISHINE ......oirimvsiciiisconnssnmisnnsessesssssiasssssssssssssssesssseessossssesssessasssssesssssessesnns 28
Subarticle 8 Treasurer
12-508.1 Treasurer's Tax DUPHCALES. ......uvvereeoeeressecresrssoemerssssssssseoeeeeeeseessessessoseesss I 29
12-508.2 Treasurer's Tax Duplicates (Motor VEhiCles). ........c.cuererrisvseiereccereensesssssesseessssssssseseres 29
12-508.3 Tax ReCEIPLS. ...ccoviviiriisiirisciniescee st ssssesss s s sos et sasssssaassssesseessesesssesssssssssesesees 29
12-308.4 Abstract of Annual SEHIEIMENLS, .......ccvvceeereeeueeeernieereiestieesaeeserssssssessesssssssesssssssesssssses 29

12-508.5 Abstract of Personal PrOPErtY ... iermnessssesssceesesonsossssessseesessesssesssssssssesseessossessss 28






General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

12-508.6 Abstract of AdQItIONALS ......ciiieeirresciecerecie et ser st s ses s e s es e me b saseneeaes 29
12-508.7 ADSIract Of EXECUHONS ....iococrieeecrciiiecerecinineneerenencse e sa st sassressases s asnness sonsesnanansasressssres 30
12-508.8 Abstract of NULA BONAS ..o s nsarasesas ercssrase e seesssss s st ssssesnsnsasssssasesses 30
12-508.9 ANnUal BULGELS ..o cencnsessssn s ssssssisn s sessssssasssssssscssisssssesssssssssonsassassarses 30
12-508.10 Audit REPOTES .ot siatonssss s sbsnsnsseessansssses rsssss 1 st srssasetsssstssesevevasneses 30
12-508.11 General LedEErs ..o ssssismssaiessismsssssss seosssstisstssssssstssssesssasessesens 30
12-508.12 General Cash BOOKS .....uiemmiimismimsomsmmsmsmsmisssismeesmsareisssessssssustssssssssassnsessessnss 30
12-508.13 Banking Records........covrivmiiiniciiissseresssssessssssssssonss s ssssssrssesssasssssssenss 31
12-508.14 Receipt BOOKS .....c.cciciiiiiniiesirsiiesnsi s s s ssssssossmsssssesssssnssssssssenes 3
12-508.15 Cancelled Bonds and COUPONS .....c.cvereeriveererercnisesmsesesmsssssssissessssesesasssssasssssassensssssrssess k)|
12-508.16 Homestead Exemption ApplCAtions ... 31
12-508.17 ADAIEIMENIS..cciviiiiiee sttt st smse b s st ses e et serase s sa e b s e n st s b e mmbiranes 3
12-508.18 Abstract of Delinquent Taxes ... s ssas s k]|
12-508.19 Abstract of Personal Property ... 32
12-508.20 BankruptCy FIles ...ttt s ss e 32
12-508.21 Delinquent Tax ReCIPIS ... s 32
12-508.22 Nulla Bonas List ......cvniimiimmiimiiiiiiessisssssmsssisissssssismsssiss s 32
[2-508.23 CLAINS c.covirivrierssesniarisermsesisissnsssssssssssassssstiressesssessassessssssssssasssassesssassssarassessebassssassissesasesiassees 32
12-508.24 Daily Abstract of Property and Poll Tax Collected ...........c.ccvrvrnmesnnmnnveisenenisnnnns 32
12-508.25 Investment RECOIMS ... et crcaneeanssernssseesssassssssssssssssessesessnsassassesssasasaressnes 32
12-508.26 Magistrate Reports of Fines and Fees ... 32
12-508.27 ROIDACKS ....ooverrererurnsnrcessonersesconissesesessesesssssssassessasssss sassssesssssasssscssssssssasssssesssssssssossessaseses 33
12-508.28 Refund for Overpayment oF Taxes ........ccoveeririncnrniseneareresssrssennsiseseraesessssssesassesessasssssses 33
12-508.29 Vehicle Tax Collection ReGISIEr ........cvevveerereerermirnenirerniensiessereesareressssssssessasessssessssssnssss 33
Subarticle 9 Tax Collector
125091 Tax EXCCUHON BOOKS +....cccorererrermmmmsereecssensrcessssenessassssasassssssessassissssssssesssnsssssssssssessssassssssssess 33
12-509.2 Delinquent Tax Sales BOOKS ......cvcvcccivrrriiricrreisinieensesesesssesssssessessssesssnssesessssassssssssssss 33
12-509.3 Abatement LISES .........ccoouiiriiniiinnimiisniinsniesicsesssessssssesessassesssesssssssssssssssnsasassanonsass 33
12-509.4 Delinquent Tax DIgest .......ciimiiiiiiininiimsiiiinsnsnsimiosimssssssesissssessasssssssssossas 34
12-509.5 NUlIa BONES ...coiriierisiisiinniinisiiinissiinsirsisississsssiriaetsensosesseessssessescssisens beserssresbastssssssosass 34
12-509.6 Delinquent Tax Settlement ReCOrds ... ccineciecrieece e s e ere s seeesensesseneneens 34
Subarticle 10 Tax Assessor
12-510.1 Property Record Cands .......iimiiiicscionneensesnssnineessssenssssssassescsssessasonsesnscas 34
12-510.2 Aerial PhOtOBIAPNS ...ccverieiiniiniisniniieismimmstisiieristresssessesassssssssssssssssrisrssstesssosssssensessssas 34
L12-510.3 TaX MaPS ..o ierccrcciimenecerconrrresseresesessesessasssstsessessorssssesssasessesansasas seatasassssssensssasssasssressssssssras 34
12-510.4 SOU MEPS 1ocriveieriricrcniinminsiioninisssisassrssaassertesssststs ssssssenssssussstnssssess seessssssestsresssstarssssssasasssssass 34
12-510.5 Applications for Special Assessment on Agricultural Real Property.......occoeeeevccrrseencnces 35
12-510.6 Appraisal RECOTAS ... sssissssesssnnsrissssssssssssssrsssssssssssessssssasasess 35
12-510.7 Property Transfer RecOrds.........ccorncnnnnianenssssisssssssssssssssessessesessessssessssess 35
12-510.8 Appeals of Assessment U UO SS— 35
12-510.9 AssesSmEnt CHANGE .......vvviiricniririercrsesesssssessesssssesssssesssesssssssessessssasssesesesssssssssssssasssssasaes 35
12-510.10 Notice of Classification, Appraisal, and ASSESSIMENt ..........ceeeruerrmrerereerenmssresrensesessissines 35
12-510.11 ROIDACKS «.ccoureiieiniriscaereesissecesasassscisssssesinessianssses st sesssosasessssssssssnsssasssssassnnssssssassasassssses 35
12-510.12 Multiple Lot Discount APPlICAIONS .......cccocreeerrircinrerinessseresssesssiessssssessssnsrsesesseseaseans 36

12-510.13 MODbile HOME RECOTAS ..ot ieeieeerecersses stsovtensssssesanrsssessesnssesssesstessataserassssssssssrsstses 36






O

General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

Subarticle 11 Building/Planning and Development
12-511.1 Plans and SPeCifICAtIONS .......ccccorererercrereernesssesssisserransesnissssaesessssnsssssasssstassserssnsssororsssnosveres
12-511.2 BUilding Permits.....cvueeiuemeriiiiiiiininninesninenininsnnssassssssssissessssesssssorssssinetstnisssesasesas
12-511.3 Planning and Zoning Commission MINUIES ...
12-511.4 Maps, Blueprints, and Drawings ... s
12-511.5 Permits = Gas, Electrical, Mechanical, PIUmbing .........ccccovrrcereemivenccrnvcrnennmeninsnnscsnsenns
12-511.6 SIBN PEIMNILS vvoviviiiiiriiiseiiisis s ssssssssssss s sassesssesssnssssssssssessssssnsesssssssssssensnas
12-511.7 Septic Tank Permits ...t eerrrressesesisireeininnresse s sseasssssersnssssessosssnsassoreataonsesers
12-511.8 InSpection RECOMS ... sssessststssessnssissensssnssnssesssssssss
12-511.9 Subdivision Files ...
12-511.10 Zoning and Variance Materials........cccou i insssessosersresees

Subarticle 12 Veterans Affairs
12-512.1 Index to Veterans FIlES ......ccccrieeiiinionimeiieciiniieesiissiicssassessesssasessasssssssssssasessesessnsesessnessssn
12-512.2 Veterans FIles ....cueiiiieeninieinrmmnrere s rnesssissssessessssesssss cosssssesne sesssssss saressansssoss s btoss sbtssntes

Subarticle 13 Maintenance Garage/Fleet Maintenance
12-513.1 Maintenance and Repair Records ... iimmioeisssssessens
12-513.2 Fuel System RePOrts ...t sessessesesessesssmasessnsssssssssssers snsssans
12-513.3 WOTK OFdErS ....covvimirereeriicririinierinmi s sesssssssssssssssssssssssstssesssssssssssssssmssassssassmssssssessssas
12-513.4 County Vehicle Accident Files ... s

Subarticle 14 Library
12-514.1 Library Board Meeting Minutes and AEndas ...........coeevecrervmracerersesssaresssssrsssmrssssarssess
12-514.2 Patron LISt ... sase s sae s sbosssas s saa st st s aanesasensrinsssaebiss
12-514.3 SHEIF LISt coviviirirsirriarirsssiesssssnessisnsssmissssissme s sssssissssssssssssasssssassssssssasees

Subarticle 15 Emergency Services
12-515.1 Patient Care FOMM ...t ssssnnassesssssassssesssssesssabsssssssssesesssssssasestorsssssosss
12-515.2 Dispatch Cards for 911 Emergency Calls ...iiimeiemimeomeesmsssmmemsaes
12-515.3 911 PRONE LS. ceocieiecirercenieerenerersrccenmresserssss e ssassssasessesssssassseasssassas ssarasassassnsnsrssessseseses
12-515.4 RadI0 LS. ..coririmnscecmsirironiecsmniiiieiicsorsmsassssasssessssasssssssssssssssssensastssasssssensesesassensesessassass
12-515.9 EMS Accounts Receivable.......iviciiismmiemmnesesssisssosemmsnesesssssasssens

Subarticle 16 Animal Control
12-516.1 Animal Complaint FOMITS .....cooiiccrnenereerresereesersesnssnssssresesssssssessavesessnsasssassessseseses
12-516.2 Animal Control Release FOIm ... cetcn et e s nesessesnessssonensssnssssesans
12-516.3 AdopHion ABIEEMENL.......cviiimiimiiiiiiisinie s st ssssssssss s sessssisssssessasssasssns
12-516.4 Euthanasia Drug USae .........ccccereeriireenicinniirnnsetensisnestsesesseseseessssssssssssssssersessssanssssssssesasas
12-516.5 Animal VIolation TICKEL .....cviuiiiimiiminmoicimmceosieensosesssssssssesssisesssessssssanassss






O

General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

Subarticle 17 Voter Registration and Elections

12-517.1 BallOtS ...cuceveuerieceiiereserenssssassarsssrasssssassenssssssssssssssssssinssnassestassassssasassensassasesssessanssasrasassarasanses 40
12-517.2 Poll Managers Applications and TeslS ... 4]
12-517.3 Petitions and Petition Summary Sheets ... 41
12-517.4 Absentee Ballot Requests {Applications for Absentee Ballots) .........cc.orenrnenvennsscsrnans 41
12-517.5 Election Material (USea} .....ccoorviiirieiniisiimimiiininisessisssssssssssasssssssansssssssssss 41
12-517.6 South Carolina Election Commission Voter List ... 41
12-517.7 Inactive Voter List (Qutdated Voter List) ..., 41
12-517.8 Election ReSUILS ...c.ccceiricieerneresessnserstisasssssisssssssssasmsssnsssssasassansssnssarsssasasssssss sossssnessasesass 411
12-517.9 Federal Post Card Application and Registration ..., 42
12-517.10 POltical Maps ...c..ccoviieimmnimcincniniemsesess s s sns crassassssssmsesssssssssssasssssssas ssssssnass s anes 42
12-517.11 Computer Printout Tallies .......ccoveeemninrmimmminesssansensscsssnscssstistssisssssamssiessssissssanss 42
12-517.12 Application to Register t0 VOte........ourrecrmrrsnisaniesssesisssssssssnssn st ssiassssisnass 42
Subarticle 18 Coroner
12-518.1 Index to INQUISILIONS ..o tsssssasbs st st sssases s s 42
12-518.2 INQUISIIONS RECOTAS ..ovniiverieirirsbisienisiess sttt sscosenscssiss s ssn s st s sastsa s ssnasssasasans 42
L12-518.3 Cas@ FlES cvvveieceiirerereeseriasenssernst seasssssnssassassse eneesisssassnnssessms smsssstsebsshasssssnasessisessassssssostsanss 42
f






General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

Introduction

The Archives and Records Management Division of the State Archives has prepared these general
retention and disposition schedules to give South Carolina’s counties the legal authorization to retain
and dispose of records common to eighteen offices and functions. The schedules list permanently
valuable records, which should be properly protected for future use, and they also supply a timetable
that will allow records custodians to regularly and legally dispose of records of non-permanent value,
In preparing the schedules, the Division consulted with various local and state government officials.

Purpose
The schedules are designed to:
* pgive county governments uniform guidelines for the retention and disposition of common records;

* make sure counties retain for as long as necessary the records they will need for administrative,
legal, fiscal, and other uses;

* make sure counties retain records for as long as state and federal laws, regulations, policies,
and procedures require;

+ promote the cost-effective management of records;
* give counties the legal authorization they need to dispose regularly of their obsolete records.

Statutory authority

Section 30-1-80(B) of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended, authorizes the State Archives to
promulgate as state regulations, general schedules for records common to local governments. On 26 June
1992, the General Assembly approved the county general schedules as Regulation 12-500 through 12-
512.2. On 26 April 2002, the General Assembly approved additions/revisions to the county general sched-
ules as Regulation 12-500 through 12-518.3

Definitions of schedules
A records retention schedule describes one or several records series, shows the length of time the records
should be retained, and indicates their final disposition. Schedules are of two types — specific and general.

Specific Records Retention Schedules - these schedules are prepared and approved specifically for
your county; your county's name will appear on these.

General Records Retention Schedules - these schedules are state regulations issued by the State Ar-
chives and are published in the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended. When a general schedule
applies to records already covered under a specific schedule, the general schedule will supersede the spe-
cific schedule unless you wish to opt out of using the general schedule.

Special provisions

Opting out — You may already have approved specific schedules that cover some of the same records as
the general schedules. If you prefer to continue using these specific schedules, the regulations allow you to
opt out of using the general schedules. The regulations will also let you opt out of using general schedules
if you wish to establish new specific schedules instead.

Unique records — These general schedules do not list records that are unique to your county. To
control the retention and disposition of these, you should refer to your specific schedules. If you have
no specific schedules, contact your records officer. If you do not know who your records officer is, con-
tact our Local Records Services Unit at 803-896-6122.



General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

Confidential and restricted records — County records officers and records custodians should ensure that
confidential records are filed, accessed, and disposed of according to federal, state, and local legal
requirements.

Exceptions to minimum retention periods — These general schedules establish minimum retention
periods for the official copy of your county’s records. Although most records can be destroyed when their
minimum retentions have been met, you may need to keep some records longer to satisfy specific
requirements. Be sure those requirements have been met before you dispose of those records.

Copies — These general schedules do not cover copies of records, which you may have made for
convenience, information, or duplication. You may destroy copies when you no longer need them.

To whom do these schedules apply?

The following county government offices and functions: register of deeds, sheriff/detention, county council/
administration, finance, purchasing, personnel, auditor, treasurer, tax collector, tax assessor, building/
planning and development, veterans affairs, maintenance garage/fleet maintenance, library, emergency
services, animal control, voter registration and elections, and coroner.

To whom do these schedules not apply?

« Municipalities, townships, school districts, special purpose districts, and any quasi-governmental
subdivisions. The State Archives has developed separate general schedules for municipalities and
school districts.

« Circuit courts of common pleas and general sessions, family courts, magistrate courts and probate
courts. Separate general schedules for court records have been issued through South Carolina Court
Administration.

General schedule format

Format for County Council Minutes
Subarticle 3. County Council/Administration
12-503.2 County Council Minutes
A. Description: Record of the proceedings at meetings of the county council, which includes
written descriptions of the financial and administrative business conducted. Information
includes date of meeting, names of councilmen present, claim approvals, petitions, bids,
proposals, and other matters discussed by or brought to the attention of the council.
B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm for security.

Each record series listed in the general schedule is presented in the following format:

Subarticle number — This publication contains schedules for eighteen offices/functions, each with a
separate subarticle number.

Regulation number and series title — The first line includes the regulation number, which is used for
control, and the title most commonly used by counties.

Part A — Description: A short statement describing the use and informational content of the record series.
It helps to identify the record.

Part B — Retention: The time period indicating the minimum length of time that records should be retained
by the office before their disposition can take place. Some records are scheduled for permanent retention
because of their value; others have retention periods that vary from “until no longer needed for reference”
to seventy-five years.



General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

Explanation of micrographics terms used in retention schedules

“Microfilm Optional” — Microfilm may be substituted for the original records IF the microfilm meets state
standards (see R-12-200 of the Code of Laws of South Carvlina, 1976, as amended). Before you destroy the
originals, you must submit to the State Archives and have approved a Microfilm Quality Certification for
Records Disposition form.

“Fermanent. Microflim for security” — You cannot destroy the original records after microfilming.

“Permanent. Microfilm"— Y ou must microfilm records of permanent value that are on non-permanent media
like computer tape and computer printouts to preserve the information they hold. And you must submit
a Microfilm Quality Certification for Records Disposition form to the State Archives for approval before
you destroy the non-permanent media those records are on.

Using this schedule effectively

* Your county records officer should coordinate all activities relating to the retention and
disposition of your records and function as a liaison with the State Archives in administering the
county's records management program. If you have no county records officer, each records
custodian has these responsibilities.

» County records officers should work with other county staff to coordinate the regular disposition
of obsolete records. Disposition should be carried out periodically—at least once a year. To
streamline disposition, your siaff should review filing arrangements, cut off files periodically, and
develop procedures to segregate inactive and obsolete files.

* Generally, non-archival records should be destroyed when the minimum retention periods have
been met, unless they are needed to meet specific requirements {(see Section 12-500). Although you
are not required to destroy records at the end of their minimum retention periods, obsolete records
should not occupy expensive office and storage space.

* The titles and descriptions of record series listed in the general schedule may not reflect exactly
the titles and descriptions you use. If you are not certain whether the schedule applies to a specific
record in your office, please contact the Local Records Services Unit at 803-896-6122.

How to use the general schedules

1. Study the general schedules and compare them with your specific schedules, if you have any, to
determine which schedules you will use.

2. Locate and examine all your records.

Match each records series with the title and description on the general schedule.

4. Follow the records disposition process outlined below. The process is illustrated by the flow chart
on page 8.

W

Records disposition process

Permanent (archival) records:

Paper Records — After your permanently-valuable paper records become inactive, you should trans-
fer them to an archival repository. Contact the Local Records Services Unit for advice on caring for
and protecting your archival records.

Micrographics — If you microfilm permanent records, contact the Micrographics Services Branch at 803-
896-6208 for help and information about microfilm standards.

Digital Images - If you are maintaining permanent records as digital images, special requirements apply.
Contact the Local Records Services Unit at 803-896-6122 for more information.



General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

Non-permanent records:

To destroy records according to general schedules, you must complete and forward to the Local Records
Services Unit a “Report on Records Destroyed” form. A sample form is included on page 5 and blank
forms are available from the Local Records Services Unit. Follow the step-by-step instructions on the back
of the form. Please note that both the form and the process are the same as those you use to document
records disposal under your specific schedules. To help you estimate cubic footage for column 9 on the
form, we have included a table of volumes on page 7.

Contacting the State Archives -~ When and whom?

When?

1. You submit a “Report on Records Destroyed” form when destroying records covered by general
and/or specific schedules.

2. You need to prepare or revise specific schedules.

3. You need help with your records management duties.

Whom?
Local Records Services Unit
8301 Parklane Road
Columbia, SC 29223-4905
Phone 803-896-6122 Fax 803-896-6138

When?

1. You want to substitute microfilm (Form ARM-12 Microfilm Quality Certification For Records
Disposition) for the original records. (Note: You must have a records schedule to do this)

2. You need to store security microfilm of permanently valuable records.

3. You want information about the filming, processing, quality control, and duplicating services the
State Archives provides.

Whom?
Micrographics Services Branch
8301 Parklane Road
Columbia, SC 29223-4905
Phone 803-896-6208 Fax 803-896-6138

N/



General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

RAOHLS3A (yd) L1 Wouy
14°N3 TV1IOL L oS oY
z0=L-1 09 B6GT-7661 €T R05-2Z1 sMye]n
70-1-1 0°¢ B661-0661 T 80s-2¢1 B3IST] BUOY BIINY
0-4-1 o'% 1661-0861 0T 805-21 so|14 Losdnijueg
z20-2-1 052 8661-5661 £1°806-21 spaodey Surjueg
20-2-1 0°81 B661-2661 £°806-21 g1d1aday xv)
NOWLINU1SIA 40 21va 'L (4 'MD) INNTOA 6] SIIVO FAISATONI R HIEWNN SIHIT 80238 2 41111 S31¥IY QNDIFE 9

ol Angpap TAVINISIYSTY HO ¥3D1430 5QUOITY 40 TUNLYNDIS

TIHNPIYIS UBHUIDY FpodY pasoadde pur 'papuowe s 'Ok L-|-0E yEnon gL-L0t
SUBIPRAS ‘9741 YNNOUYD HLNOT S0 SAVT 40 3002 LIV $a3033U DI'ENG 243 §0 suciiaoid Yl 2UvpIadw u) jo pasods|p uaan FARY MO0 PALE|| PRI AY) G

7002 ‘i Aaunmuep
JAVAa

IDANERIT)
IHA40 HO NOISIAID £

Ly
HITWAN JNOED QUODIN 2

BELF-9GR-E08 SX VY

SO6VETZ6L D5 ‘VIEWNNTOD

GVOY INVINNYA LOED

HONVHE $3DIAYIS SOHODTY
ABOASIH % SAAIHOYY

40 INFWINVIIA YNITONVD HLNOS

03 miv) STyl Jo dded joubio aqy umjay

f3unmag za7ang
AJNADY TYIOT HO 21VLRS L

Q3A0HLSIA SAHOIIY NO LHOJIH
ININIDYNYI SAU0IIN B SIAHOINY 30 NOISIAKD
ANOASIH B SIAIHIYY 40 LNAIWLHVLIA IS

O




General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE FORM
REPORT ON RECORDS DESTROYED

Please read the instructions carefully before completing this form.

After completion, your agency must return this form to the State Archives, Records
Services Branch, and retain a copy for reference to document the legal disposition of your
records.

AGENCY means any state or local government entity.

This form should be used to report the destruction of records covered under a specific
and/or general record retention schedule. Generally, this form should be completed by
the agency records officer or authorized representative.

1.

2.

Enter your agency’s name (Department of Heaith and Environmental Control) or the
name of your political subdivision (Lexington County Sheriff's Office).

Leave block 2 blank. This block will be completed by SC Department of Archives and
History Record Analysts upon receipt of this form by the Records Services Branch.

. Enter any division or office identification which will clarify the records destroyed

(Retirement System, State Law Enforcement Division).

. Enter the date your agency prepares this form.
. The official making the report should sign here. The approving authority must be the

agency's chief administrative officer or authorized representative. In most state
agencies, this authorized representative may be the agency records officer. In local
agencies this authorized representative may be the manager, administrator, elected
department head or other designated official.

Enter the exact record series title. Each series title should correspond to the one cited
in the record retention schedule.

. Enter the appropriate record series number for each record series destroyed.
. Enter the earliest and latest dates covered by the records destroyed (2/1992-5/1993;

or 1987-1990).

. Enter the volume (in cubic feet) of records destroyed. See 77 below.
10.
11.

Enter the date (month and year) of destruction (3/1993; 1/1987; 12/1980).
Enter the total volume of records destroyed. Add figures entered in column 9.



O

General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

TABLE OF VOLUMES

QTy. ITEM/SIZE

CAPACITY
C
g 1 vertical letter-size file drawer 1.5 cubic feet
|{| 1 vertical legal-size file drawer 2.0 cubic feet
E
'g 1 lateral legal-size file drawer 2.5 cubic feet
B
0O
)é 1 standard Records Center box 1.0 cubic foot
S
S
ll::l 1 letter-size open shelf—36" long 2.0 cubic feet
L
v 1 legal-size open shelf—36" long 2.5 cubic feet
E
S
C
A 10 12" rows of 3" x 5" cards 1.0 cubic foot
R
= 6 12" rows of 4" X 6" cards 1.0 cubic foot
F
II. 4 12" rows of 5" x 8" cards 1.0 cubic foot
E
S 5 14" boxes of tab cards 1.0 cubic foot

CUBIC FOOT EQUIVALENCY FORMULA

LxWxH (in inches) = cubic feet/unit

1728 inches




General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

Need to
dispose
of record

Has
retention
period
expired?

Is retenition
permanent?

Is record to be
microfilmed?

Contact
Micrographics
Services Branch for
information on
standards and
storage of security
copies

Is record histed on
a specific schedule?

Maintain
record until
refertion
period expires

Transfer the record
10 an archival
repository or

adequately protect

onsite

Contact Local
Records Serwices
to initiate the
scheduling process

County destrors

records = completes

“Report on Records
Destroyed” form

County forwards
form to Local Records
Services Unit and
retains a copy
permanently




O

-

General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

General Retention Schedule for County Records

12-500. Introduction and general matters; application of schedule.

The following general schedules contain minimum records retention periods for the official copy of
the records. These retentions and dispositions apply regardless of physical format, i.e., paper,
microfilm, electronic storage, digital imaging, etc. Convenience, informational or duplicate copies are
not governed by this regulation and may be destroyed when no longer needed for reference. To destroy
records in accordance with this regulation, county governments must complete and submit a report
of records destroyed form to the Department of Archives and History after eligible records have been
destroyed. These forms are available from the Department’s Division of Archives and Records
Management. Before disposing of public records under these general schedules, county governments
should insure that the records have no further audit, legal, or fiscal value. These general schedules
supersede all schedules approved previously for the same records series. However, county govern-
ments may opt out of these general schedules and request the continuing use of existing schedules or
the establishment of specific retention schedules for their records when appropriate, necessary, or in
order to avold conflict with other laws or regulations.

Subarticle 1. Register of Deeds

12-501.1. Grantor and Grantee Index to Conveyances

A. Description: A finding aid to instruments in the conveyance book series. Information includes
name of grantee and grantor, book and page number where document is recorded, day and year of
execution, month, day and year of recordation, number of acres or lots and a description of the land.
B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm for security.

12-501.2. Conveyances (Deeds, Titles to Real Estate)

A. Description: Documents real property transactions plus infrequent entries involving personal
property. Information includes grantor, grantee, location and description of land, monetary consid-
eration, encumbrances (if any), signature of grantor, notary, and witnesses (or facsimiles thereol), date
recorded, and plats (where applicable).

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm for security.

12-501.3. Mortgagor and Mortgagee Index to Real Estate Mortgages

A. Description: A finding aid to instruments in the real estate mortgage book series. Information
includes name of mortgagee and martgagor, book and page number where document is recorded, and
the date,

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

12-501.4. Real Estate Mortgages and Satisfactions

A. Description: Records the transfer of property, serving as a security for a debt which becomes void
when the debt is paid according to the terms of the mortgage. Information includes name of mortgagor
and mortgagee, description of the property, date of instrument, date of recording and satisfaction of
mortgage (where applicable).

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

12-501.5. Index to Plats

A. Description: A finding aid to plats. Information includes name of owner and surveyor, date filed,
date surveyed, volurne and page number, property location, description, map number.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm for security.



General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

12-501.6. Plats

A, Description: Documents the legal survey and mapping of lands for grants and conveyances.
Information includes location, boundaries and divisions, date of survey, certificate of surveyaor, scale,
property owners, date of recording, and plat.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm for security.

12-501.7. Index to Miscellaneous Records
A. Description: A finding aid to instruments in the miscellaneous record series. Information
includes name of party, book and page number.
B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

12-501.8. Miscellaneous Records

A. Description: Various instruments filed with the office, including charters, contracts, options,
agreements, powers of attorney, covenants, articles of association, articles of mergers between
corporations, notices of forthcoming mergers, assignments of contract to mortgages, limited partner-
ship agreements, and notices of intent to petition.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

12-501.9. Index to Uniform Commercial Code Financing Statements.

A. Description: A finding aid for liens on personal property under the Uniform Commercial Code
adopted for South Carolina as of January 1968. Information includes name of debtor, date of personal
debt, date of maturity, character of debt, and description of personal property pledged.

B. Retention: 1 year after all entries have been terminated or lapsed, then destroy.

12-501.10. Uniform Commercial Code Financing Statements
A. Description: Original papers recording liens on personal property under the Uniform Commer-
cial Code adopted for South Carolina as of January 1968. These replace chattel mortgages. Informa-
tion includes file number, debtor’s name and address, secured party, filing date, time, number, and
officer, types of property covered, signature of party and signature of clerk.
B. Retention:
(1) Financing statements where transmitting utility is the debtor: 1 year after termination statement
has been filed, then destroy. If a microfilm or other photographic record of the financing statement
and any related statements {continuation, assignment, release} exist, originals may be destroyed
immediately after receipt of termination statement. Microfilm or other photographic records may
then be destroyed one year after termination statement has been filed.

{2) Other financing statements: 1 year after statement has lapsed or termination statement has been
filed, then destroy. If a microfilm or other photographic record of the financing statement and any
related statements (continuation, assignment, release) exist, originals may be destroyed immedi-
ately after statement has lapsed or after receipt of termination statement. Microfilm or other
photographic records may then be destroyed one year after statement has lapsed or termination
statement has been filed.

12-501.11. Charters

A. Description: Consists of information on charters which have been recorded in the office of the
Secretary of State. Information includes name of organization, incorporators, date, place of activities,
capital, stock, increases in capital stock and cancellations.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

10



General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

12-501.12. Chattel Mortgages and Indexes

A. Description: Defunct series containing original papers recording liens on personal property by

chattel mortgages. Information includes debtor’s name and address, secured party, filing date, time,

number, officer, types of property covered, signature of party, signature of notary. These have been

replaced by Uniform Commercial Code Financing Statements.

B. Retention:
(1) Records concerning chattel mortgages for rural electric cooperatives and Public Service ,
Commission regulated utilities: Until termination statement is filed, then destroy. ém‘l&’ﬁ“j‘ n

{2) Other records: Destroy.
“Tax lens

12-501.13. Index to Federal Tax Liens ( 5urS

A. Description: Finding aid to federal tax liens. Information includes name of taxpayer, address of a; qﬂ%d
taxpayer, date of filing, hour of filing, and amount of tax with interest. O/ e d .
B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

12-501.14. Federal Tax Liens

A. Description: Standard forms filed in the office against personal property as a means of collecting
delinquent federal taxes. Information includes period ending, type and amount of taxes owed, amount
of penalty, amount of interest, total taxes, name/address of taxpayer, warrant number, date of notice
and demand, date signed, and signature of tax official.

B. Retention: 10 years and 30 days after date of assessment or last extension, whichever is longer,
then destroy.

12-501.15. Index to State Tax Liens

A. Description: Finding aid to state tax liens. Information includes name of taxpayer, address of
taxpayer, date of filing, hour of filing, and amount of tax with interest.

B. Retention: 10 years, then destroy.

12-501.16. State Tax Liens

A. Description: Standard forms filed in the office against personal property as a means of collecting
delinquent state taxes, Information includes period ended, type and amount of taxes owed, amount
of penalty, interest, total tax, name/address of taxpayer, warrant number, date of notice and demand,
date assigned, and signature of tax official.

B. Retention: 10 years, then destroy.

12-501.17. Index to Mechanics Liens

A. Description: Serves as the principal finding aid for locating mechanics liens. Information
includes name of plaintiff, name of defendant, and file number.

B. Retention: 10 years after final entry has been executed, discharged, released, or dissolved, then
destroy.

12-501.18. Mechanics Liens

A. Description: Records transcripts of mechanics’ and contractor’s claims filed as statutory liens on
property to secure payment of debt for materials or labor used thereon. Information includes name
of defendant, name of plaintiff, description of lien, recording date and time, book numbers and page

number.
B. Retention: 10 years after final judgement to execute the lien, discharge, release or dissolution has
been entered upon the registry, then destroy.

11



General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

Subarticle 2. Sheriff/Detention

12-502.1. Incident Reports

A. Description: Records the original report of a felony or incident and pertinent facts surrounding
the offense. Information includes incident type, case number, NCIC entry, incident code, premise
type, incident location, incident date, time date, reporting area, complaint, victim information, subject
{suspect) data, arrest data, vehicle data, witness data, narrative, and UCR data administrative section.

B. Retention: 5 years, or until of no further legal or administrative value whichever comes later, then
destroy.

12-502.2. Criminal History Records

A. Description: Records complete cumulative original history on any subject arrested for a crime
by the Sheriff's department. Information may include any/all of the following: name, date of birth,
physical description, FBI number, address, employment, marital status, education, date of arrests and
releases, identification information (mugshots, fingerprints), facts surrounding investigation, final
disposition.

B. Retention: Until death of the subject or 75 years, whichever comes first, then destroy.

12-502.3. Writ Book (Receipt Book for Civil Papers Served)
A.. Description: Record of initial and intermediate civil processes served including writs, citations,
subpoenas, notices, injunction, or warrants (19th century volumes may include criminal processes),
Information includes parties names, attorneys, kind of writ, date of entry, by whom served, date of
service, kind of service, sheriff’s costs, general remarks.
B. Retention:

(1) Pre-1921 volumes: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

{2) Post-1920 volumes: 10 years, then destroy.

12-502.4. Execution Books
A. Description: Record of all final civil processes received by the sheriff for executions against
property to satisfy judgements issued from the court. Information includes kind of process, when
lodged, name of parties, debt and interest, attorneys’ names, sheriff's receipts, date of levy, plaintiff's
attorneys (Pre-1900 volumes may contain tax executions).
B. Retention:

(1) Pre-1921 volumes: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

(2) Post-1920 volumes: 10 years, then destroy.

12-502.5. Tax Execution Books
A. Description: Record of delinquent taxes turned over for execution. Information includes number
of tax execution, name of defaulter, date of entry, amount of taxes and penalties collected (later
volumes may contain property valuations).
B. Retention:
(1) Pre-1901 Tax Execution Books: Permanent. Microfilm optional.
{2) Post-1900 Tax Execution Books:
(a) When Corresponding Auditor's and Treasurer's Tax Duplicates are Both Missing:
Permanent. Microfilm optional.

(b) When Corresponding Auditor's or Treasurer's Tax Duplicates Exist: 10 years, then
destroy.

12



General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

12-502.6. Sale Book

A. Description: Record of all relevant information pertaining to property sold by the sheriff for
satisfaction of judgement or liquidation of confiscated and stolen goods. Information includes parties,
date of advertisement, when sold, description of property, amount, and by whom sold.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

12-502.7. Jail Book

A. Description: Record of persons incarcerated in the county jail. Information includes name of
prisoner, offense, date of commitment, by whom committed, bond, releasing officer, date released,
how released, and remarks.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

12-502.8. Juvenile Booking Records

A. Description: Documents juveniles arrested and booked by county law enforcement. Information
includes date, name, alias, address, nearest relative, relative's address, charge, arresting officer.

B. Retention: 3 years after subject reaches majority, then destroy.

12-502.9. Juvenile Case Files

A. Description: Documents juveniles taken into custody. Information includes evidence from
SLED, fingerprint reports, exhibits, and statements.

B. Retention: 3 years after subject reaches majority, then destroy, unless there is legal reason toretain
further.

12-502.10. Case Files

A. Description: Compilation of all relevant data necessary for the creation of a case against a
defendant(s) on a particular crime. Information includes detailed investigative data on the offense and
the defendant(s) compiled on several standard forms such as Incident Report and Booking Report.
B. Retention: 30 years, then destroy.

12-502.11. Evidence Case Files
A. Description: Property invoice and receipt showing evidence taken from crime scene and
suspects. Information includes case number, crime type, victim name and address, suspect name and
address, location, examination requested, lab case number, item number, quantity, description of
property, chain of custody, and final release.
B. Retention:
(1) Death Penalty Cases: Until death of defendant or state Supreme Court rules on the case,
whichever comes first, then destroy.

(2) Other cases: 1 year after the final action in the case, then destroy.

12-502.12. Booking Reports

A. Description: Record of all persons arrested and booked by the Sheriff's office. Information
includes agency identification, case number, name, sex, date of birth, docket number, age, height,
weight, hair, eyes, social security number, visible scars and marks, NCIC identification number,
address, phone number, alias, drivers license number, occupation, next of kin and address, booking
officer’s name, current date, charge data, medical data, release date, time, and arresting officer,

B. Retention: 10 years, then destroy.

13



General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

12-502.13. Arrest Cards

A. Description: Card system which serves as a record of arrests in the sheriff's department.
Information includes race, height, sex, date of birth, social security number, age, date and place of birth
along with case number, date arrested, charge, and disposition.

B. Retention: 5 years, then destroy.

12-502.14. Fingerprint Files

A. Description: Records fingerprints of persons arrested by the sherifl's department. These files are
utilitized for investigative and identification purposes. Information includes date, name and address
of defendant, date of birth, social security number, race, sex, height, weight, eyes, hair, date arrested,
charge/offense, signature of defendant, signature of officer, fingerprint impressions, information for
FBI on reverse side.

B. Retention: Until notification of death of subject or 75 years, whichever comes first, then destroy.

12-502.15. Mug Shots

A. Description: Photographs of individuals who have been arrested and charged with various
criminal offenses. These photographs are used by law enforcement personnel, victims, and witnesses
to aid in identification of suspects. Information includes person’s name, address, description, date, and
photograph.

B. Retention: Until superseded or of no further value, then destroy.

12-502.16. Inmate Medical Forms
A. Description: Medical screening record created upon the incarceration of an inmate and compiled
throughout the incarceratton of the inmate. Information includes Receiving Screening Form, Display
Medical Screening, nurse's and physician’s notes, records from Emergency Room or other treatment
facility, log of prescribed medication, distribution of medication, and log of taking the medication.
B. Retention:

(1) Adult Medical Records: 10 years after medical incident, then destroy.

(2) Juvenile Medical Records: 13 years after medical incident, then destroy.

12.502.17. Inmate Request Forms

A.Description: Record of inmate requests. Information includes date of request, inmate's name, cell
location, date of birth, type of request.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-502.18. Inmate Visitor Log

A. Description: Record of each inmate’s visitors. Information includes date, inmate’s name, time
in/out, visitor's name, relation to inmate.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-502.19. Inmate Accounting Records

A. Description: Listing of the inmates assigned to each cell. Information includes shift number, shift
time, date, time of report, cell identification, max, act, booking number, name of inmate and
comments.

B. Retention: 5 years, then destroy.

14



General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

12-502.20. Arrest Warrants

A. Description: Sheriff's office copies of orders issued by judges or magistrates to arrest a subject for
suspicion of a crime. Information includes name of county, name and address of defendant, date,
description, description of offense, location of judge, date warrant issued, warrant number, witnesses,
sex, race, social security number, height, weight, date of birth, defendant, preliminary hearing date,
bail amount, disposition, and judge's signature. This series Is summarized in the Index to Arrest/
Booking Reports.

B. Retention: Until copy of the warrant is served, then forward the original to the issuing official.

12-502.21. Daily Shift Report

A. Description: Record of daily activities during each shift. Information includes employees
working, shift, census report, custodial report, shift supervisor’s signature,

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-502.22. Training Files

A. Description: Summary training information of all commissioned personnel. Information
includes appointment/commission; copies of application for Police Academy, including photo copies
of High School Diplomas, GED or official transcript, certified copy of driver history, NCIC I and II,
pre-placement medical history, and birth certificate; certification letter from Police Academy; list of
training completed, including firearms, emergency vehicle operations, blood borne pathogens, cores,
legal, baton certification, cap-stun certification, crime to courts (including written and practical
exercises); any other outside agency training received while employed by the Sheriff's office; hepatitis
B testing and results; equipment issue; equipment order; and disciplinary actions which relate to
training.

B. Retention: 5 years after termination of employment, then destroy.

12-502.23. Dispatch Records

A.Description: Records each time an officer is dispatched in response to a citizen's call. Information
includes complainant’s name, complainant's address, and complainant’s phone number.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-502.24. Complaint Cards

A. Description: Documents the complaints received by the Sheriff's Department. Information
includes complaint number, nature/code complaint, date received, name of complainant, home
address and telephone number, time received, action taken, time dispatched, and officer assigned.
B. Retention: 5 years, then destroy.

12-502.25. Polygraph Records

A. Description: Sheriff's Department copies of the South Carclina Law Enforcement Division's
record of the testing of subjects who submit to a polygraph test in an effort to determine truthfulness
regarding facts in an investigation of a criminal act. Information includes date of examination, name
of subject, graphic responses to questions, and signature of examiner/operator.

B. Retention: 5 years after case is closed, then destroy.

12-502.26. SLED Lab Reports

A. Description: Report from SLED explaining preliminary examination of evidence submitted
from the sheriff's department regarding crimes that have been committed. Information includes date,
reference (case number, victim's name, subject, offense, local case number), content, signature of
analyst, date, and location. The original is retained by SLED permanently.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

15



General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

12-502.27. Property Receipts

A. Description: Records collection of personal property taken from abandoned vehicles, recovered
stolen vehicles, and other stolen property. Information includes date, time, case number, description
of property, name and address of owner (if available).

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-502.28. Radio Logs

A.Description: Document all incoming and outgoing radio communications. Information includes
date, time, broadcast from, broadcast to, signal number, message, dispatcher name, on duty time, and
off duty time.

B. Retention: 2 years, then destroy.

12-502.29. Summons and Arrest
A. Description: Standard state form including the following information: driver’s name, address,
occupation, state licensed, license number, vehicle number, state, make of vehicle, year, name of trial
officer, street and number, city, date of trial, time of trial, violation, section number, nature of offense,
owner of vehicle, address of owner, date of arrest, date of violation, case, disposition, description of
accused, sentence of court, committed to, arrest as a result of accident, certified correct, date, offense
code, test refused, blood alcohol level, amount of fine, and amount of suspense.
B. Retention:

(1) DUI Offenses: 10 years after trial date, then destroy.

(2) Non - DUI Offenses: 5 years, then destroy.

12-502.30. Uniform Crime Reports

A. Description: Copy of the monthly statistics sent to South Carolina Law Enforcement Division
outlining criminal activity within the county. Information includes date, case number, description of
crime, subject name, victim name, officer number, received by, received from, receipt number, and
released to date.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

Subarticle 3. County Council/Administration

12-503.1. County Council Meeting Tapes

A. Description: Cassette tape recordings of county council meetings used in preparing county
council minutes. Information includes date of meeting, meeting time, meeting place, council members
present, order of business, business discussed and decisions made.

B. Retention: 2 years, then destroy/re-use, provided paper copies of the minutes have been
produced.

12-503.2. County Council Minutes

A. Description: Record of proceedings at meetings of the county council which includes written
descriptions of the financial and administrative business conducted. Information includes dates of
meetings, names of councilmen present, claim approvals, petitions, bids, proposals, and other matters
discussed by or brought to the attention of the council.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm for security.

16

—



==

General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

12-503.3. Ordinances

A, Description: Original ordinances passed by the county council representing local laws and
regulations which pertain to the county only. Information includes ordinance number, ordinance,
date, and signatures of the chairman and council clerk.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm for security.

12-503.4. Resolutions

A. Description: Record of official actions authorized by county council through the passage of
resolutions. Information includes resolution number, resolution, date, signature of chairman, and
signature of county clerk.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm for security.

12-503.5. Annual Budgets

A.Description: Printed copies of annual budgets showing projected receipts and expenditures from
varjous offices. Approved budget appropriations are listed for each department.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

12-503.6. Audit Reports

A. Description: Printed reports documenting the annual audit of county funds. These reports,
prepared by an outside accounting firm, are categorized by the various county offices and further
classified by accounts to which they relate. This series also includes semiannual and special audits.
Information includes balance sheet, summary of revenue and expenditures, cash balances, statement
of taxes, statement of delinquent taxes, statement of other receipts, statement of fines and fees.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

12-503.7. General Ledgers
A. Description: One or more series of financial ledgers providing final year-to-date summary
accounting data and a permanent audit trail for all fiscal receipt and disbursement transactions
affecting any and all county funds and accounts, including receipts and expenditures from all revenue
sources, both public and private. For computer generated ledgers, must include annual accounting
code data and computer system documentation needed to access accounting information.
B. Retention:

(1) Computer Generated Ledgers: Permanent. Microfilm.

(2) Non-Computer Generated Ledgers: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

12-503.8. Claims

A. Description: Cancelled claims which were issued as payment for goods and services required by
the county, Information includes date, person presenting, check number, claim number, amount, and
approval signatures.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-503.9. Paid Invoices

A. Description: Filed coples of invoices submitted by various vendors supplying goods and services
to the county. These invoices are filed together with copies of the county checks and/or claim forms
containing descriptions of the items purchased. Information includes Invoice: vendor name, address,
date of purchase, purchase order (if any), invoice number, item(s) or service(s) purchased, amounts,
total. Check Copy: vendor name, address, date of check, amount, check number. Claim Form: date,
account number(s), description of item(s), amount(s), approval, and signature(s).

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

17



General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

12-503.10. Purchase Orders

A. Description: Office copies of purchase orders for goods and services paid for by the county, or
for goods and services yet to be delivered to the county. Information includes vendor number, project
number, date of purchase order, department, vendor name and address, shipping instructions,
quantity ordered, general ledger account number, unit price, extended price, purchasing agent
signature, individual who signs for receipt of goods/services and date received, and notations
regarding any shortages in shipment.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-503.11. Receipts

A. Description: Copies of receipts issued to persons turning over money. Information includes
receipt number, date, from whom received, amount, purpose, and signature of clerk.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-503.12. Banking Records

A. Description: Cancelled checks and deposit slips written by the county along with the statements
issued by the bank. Information includes checks: date, to whom paid, amount, check number,
authorized signature; bank statements: list of checks for one month period, dates, beginning balance,
ending balance; deposit slips: date, amounts of deposits, and total deposit.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-503.13. Agenda Packets (Council, Boards, and Commissions)

A. Description: Record of items submitted for consideration to the county council and other boards
and commissions. Information includes meeting number, date, locale and time; order and description
of proposed business.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

12-503.14. Various Board and Commission Minutes

A. Description: Meeting minutes of various boards and commissions, including records of
proceedings and written descriptions of business conducted. Information includes dates of meetings,
names of members present, and other matters discussed.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

12-503.15. General Correspondence and Subject Files

A. Description: Copies of incoming and outgoing correspondence to and from the office with

businesses and other government offices and citizens, studies, reports, memorandums, statistics,

policies, and manuals. For the purpose of retention scheduling, the files are broken down as follows:
(1) Policy and Program Records. These records document the formulation and adoption of policies
and procedures and the implementation or management of the programs or functions of the office
or department. Included are such records as correspondence with citizens and government officials
regarding policy and procedures development or program administration; annual or ad hoc
narrative or statistical reports on program activities, achievements or plans; organizational charts
and mission statements; studies regarding department or office operations; circular letters,
directives or similar papers addressed to subordinate units or staff concerning policies, procedures,
or programs; and records related to significant events in which the department or office partici-
pated. Records may include photographs, published material, audio tape, or other record forms.
(2) General Administrative Records. These records are of a general facilitative nature created or
received in the course of administering programs. Included are such records as correspondence of
a routine or repetitive type, such as request for information; reference materials, sometimes of a

18



0,

General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

technical nature, used, but not created by, the office; daily, weekly, or monthly office activity reports
which are summarized in annual reports or which relate to routine activities; personnel data on
office staff which are duplicated in personnel office files; purchase orders, travel expense statements
or similar financial papers which are duplicated in fiscal office files; daily or weekly work
assignments for office staff, suspense or follow up files which duplicate copies of papers filed
elsewhere; circular letters, directives or similar papers received from other offices; and rough drafts
or notes created in compiling reports or studies.
(3) General Housekeeping Fifes. These records are of a general “housekeeping” nature created or
maintained by an office which do not relate directly to the primary program responsibility of the
office. Included are such records as charitable fund raising drive materials; custodial services
request; emergency evacuation procedures; notices of holidays; parking space assignment lists;
telephone installation requests; and lists showing the distribution of keys.

B. Retention:
(1} Policy and Program Records: Permanent. Microfilm optional.
(2) General Administrative Records: 5 years, then destroy.

(3) General Housekeeping Files: Until no longer needed for reference, then destroy.

Subarticle 4. Finance

12-504.1. Audit Reports

A. Description: Printed reports documenting the annual audit of county funds. These reports,
prepared by an outside accounting firm, are categorized by the various county offices and further
classified by accounts to which they relate. This series also includes serniannual and special audits.
Information includes balance sheet, summary of revenue and expenditures, cash balances, statement
of taxes, statement of delinquent taxes, statement of other receipts, statement of fines and fees.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

12-504.2, General Ledgers
A. Description: One or more series of financial ledgers providing final year-to-date summary
accounting data and a permanent audit trail for all fiscal receipt and disbursement transactions
affecting any and all county funds and accounts, including receipts and expenditures from all revenue
sources, both public and private. For computer generated ledgers, must include annual accounting
code data and computer system documentation needed to access accounting information.
B. Retention:

(1) Computer Generated Ledgers: Permanent. Microfilm.

(2) Non-Computer Generated Ledgers: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

12-504.3. Annual Budgets

A. Description: Printed copies of annual budgets showing projected receipts and expenditures from
various offices. Approved budget appropriations are listed for each department.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

12-504.4. Payroll Register
A. Description: Documents wages paid to county employees for services rendered. Information
includes name of employee, social security number, date of check, hourly or salaried amount,
overtime, number of hours worked, volunteered and other deductions.
B. Retention:

(1} Year End Payroll Registers: 60 years, then destray.

(2) Other Payroll Registers: 1 year, then destroy
19



General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

12-504.5. Payroll Check Registers

A. Description: Check registers summarizing the information on payroll checks issued. Used for
balancing accounts, internal fiscal control, and external audits. Information includes employee name,
soclal security number, amount of check, state and federal income tax deductions, other deductions,
and year-to-date totals per pay period.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-504.6. South Carolina Retirement System Quarterly Report

A. Description: Quarterly report of contributions made by county employees to the South Carolina
Retirement System. Information includes employer’s name, address, date of quarter, employee’s
name, active member register numbers, non-member notations, retirement contributions and social
security numbers.

B. Retention: 60 years, then destroy.

12-504.7. Deduction Registers

A. Description: Summarizations of information on deductions from payroll checks. Used for
balancing accounts, internal fiscal control, and external audits. Information includes employee name,
social security number, state and federal income tax deductions, and year-to-date deductions per pay
period.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-504.8. Account Payable Check Registers

A. Description: Documents check payments to vendors/contractors for services/materials sold to
the county. Information includes date, vendor number, purchase order number and date, account
number, amount, date of invoice, transaction date, transaction number, and control number.

B. Retention: 5 years, then destroy.

12-504.9. Banking Records

A. Description: Cancelled checks and deposit slips written by the county along with the statements
issued by the bank. Information includes checks: date, to whom paid, amount, check number,
signature of finance officer; bank statements: list of checks for one month period, dates, beginning
balance, ending balance; deposit slips: date, amounts of deposits, and total deposit.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-504.10. Claims

A. Description: Office copies of documents establishing a claim on the county for goods and
services. It may also include copies of checks and invoices.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-504.11. Revenue Sharing Claims

A. Description: Claims presented to the finance office and paid from Federal and State Revenue
sharing funds. Information includes claim number, date filed, name, address, amount, charge to, and
date approved.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-504.12. Receipts (Receipt Carbons)

A. Description: Copies of receipts issued by the office to persons turning over funds. Information
includes date, number, from whom received, amount, purpose, and authorizing signatures.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

20



General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

12-504.13. W-2 Forms

A. Description: Employer's copy of employee's total earnings and withholdings for the calendar
year reported to the Internal Revenue Service. Information includes employer's identification
number, employer's name and address, employee’s social security number, federal income tax
withheld, FICA taxes withheld, total FICA wages and state income tax withheld.

B. Retention: 5 years, then destroy.

12-504.14. Budget Files

A. Description: Preparation materials used in the formulation of the county budget. Information
includes budget requests and supplemental information justifying budget requests.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-504.15. Chart of Accounts

A. Description: Used to provide a cost accounting system to satisfy legal and stewardship
requirements connected with handling public funds. Information includes balance sheet accounts,
revenue accounts, and expenditure accounts.

B. Retention: 5 years, then destroy.

12-504.16. Fixed Assets

A. Description: Provides an inventory of fixed assets (office equipment, furniture, motor vehicles,
weapons, radios, computers, etc.) for each department. Information includes department name, item
description, account number, invoice number, vendor number, check number; completed by, asset
description, serial number, class code, asset number, department location, department sub-location,
comments, acquisition information: date, cost, code, and condition; vehicle number, employee
assigned vehicle, key number, inspection month, fuel code, insurance code, odometer reading, license
number, and cdometer code.

B. Retention: 3 years after property disposal, then destroy.

12-504.17. Grant Files
A. Description: Background application information and action taken on federal and state grants
awarded to the County. Information includes grant number, date, amount, Federal or State grant, filing
guidelines, grant application, contracts, correspondence, reimbursement requests, progress reports,
and final reports.
B. Retention:

(1) Applications, Grant Contract Agreements, and Annual and Final Grant Project Reports for

Significant Projects: Permanent. Microfilm optional.
(2) Other Records: 3 years after completion of grant project, then destroy.

12-504.18. Journal Entries

A. Description: Various types of journal entries created by the finance department, used to review
and adjust various accounts before transferring information to the General Ledger. Information
includes name of department, account number, description, voucher number, date, reference number,
debit, credit, and date.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-504.19. Balance Sheets

A. Description: Monthly summary of accounting data, assets, liabilities, and net worth. Information
includes account number, assets, reserve and fund balances, liabilities, totals, and net worth.

B. Retention: 1 year, then destroy.

21



General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

12-504.20. Trial Balances

A. Description: Summary information of receipts and expenditures from various accounts used in
balancing the General Ledger. Information includes date, account number, name, month to date
balance, and year to date balance. For computer generated ledgers this annual accounting code data
and computer system documentation is needed to access accounting information.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-504.21. Landfill Billing Invoices and Weight Tickets

A. Description: Used to bill for services at the county landfill. Information includes invoice number,
date, description, weight, and total amount due.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

Subarticle 5. Purchasing

12-505.1. Requisitions

A. Description: Request forms from the various county offices and departments which describe
goods or services to be ordered by the purchasing department. Information includes number,
department, delivery location, date, date required, item number, quantity, description, known
suppliers, and authorizing signature,

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-505.2. Purchase Orders

A. Description: Office copies of purchase orders for goods and services paid for by the county, or
for goods and services yet to be delivered to the county. Information includes vendor number, project
number, date of purchase order, department, vendor name and address, shipping instructions,
quantity ordered, unit of issue, description of good/services ordered, general ledger account number,
unit price, extended price, purchasing agent signature, individual who signs for receipt of goods/
services and date received, and notations regarding any shortages in shipment.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-505.3. Paid Invoices

A. Description: Filed copies of invoices submitted by various vendors supplying goods and services
to the county. These invoices are filed together with copies of the county checks and/or claim forms
containing descriptions of the items purchased. Information includes invoice: vendor name, address,
date of purchase, purchase order (if any), invoice number, item(s) or service(s) purchased, amounts,
total; check copy: vendor name, address, date of check, amount, check number; and claim form: date,
account number(s), description of item(s), amount(s), approval signature(s).

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.,

12-505.4. Bids

A. Description: Record of each bid submitied by vendors selling goods and/or services to the
county. Information includes request for quotation, bid spread sheet and bid award letter.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-505.5. Vendor Files

A. Description: Listing of vendors with whom the county currently conducts business. Information
includes vendor's name, number, address and federal identification number.

B. Retention: Until superseded, then destroy.

22



O

General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

12-505.6. Contracts

A. Description: Contracts made between the county and another party. Information includes date,
type of contract, explanation of agreement, signature of parties, and notarization.

B. Retention: 3 years after contract expires, then destroy.

Subarticle 6. Personnel

12-506.1. Application File (Not Hired)

A.Description: Application forms submitted by persons applying for jobs with the county who were
not hired. Information includes name, address, education and work experience.

B. Retention: 2 years from the date of rejection, then destroy.

12-506.2. Employment Files

A. Description: Forms and materials relating to individuals employed with the county. Files include
salary information, attendance and leave records, workmen's compensation reports, performance
evaluations, and complete employment history.

B. Retention: 5 years after termination of employment, then destroy.

12-506.3. Time Cards

A. Description: Record of hours worked by county employees. Information includes employee
name, date, and hours worked.

B. Retention: 2 years, then destroy.

12-506.4. Time Sheets

A. Description: Verification of the number of hours worked by each employee. Information
includes employee’s name, employee number, hourly wage, days and hours worked and department
head approval.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-506.5. State and Local Government Information Reports (EEO-4)

A. Description: Annual report monitoring internal programs for insuring equal employment
opportunities. Information includes number of employees by job categories, by race, by sex, by salary
and number of part-time and newly-hired employees during the fiscal year.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

12-506.6. Earnings Record

A. Description: Summarized list of earnings for each county employee. Information includes social
security number, name, gross pay, net pay, federal taxes, state taxes, local taxes, FICA, and retirement
deductions.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-506.7. Deduction Registers

A. Description: Summarizations of information on deductions from payroll checks. Used for
balancing accounts, internal fiscal control, and external audits. Information includes employee name,
social security number, year to date tax deductions.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

23



General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

12-506.8. Leave Records

A. Description: Record of leave balances for each employee. Information includes name, social
security number, leave accrued, leave used, and balances.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-506.9. Employee Insurance Files

A. Description: Record of insurance coverage selected by employees of the county. Information
includes Certificate of Election, Notice of Election Form, Rejection Notice, and coverage termination
form.

B. Retention: 3 years after inactive, then destroy.

12-506.10. Log and Summary of Occupational Illnesses and Injuries

A. Description: Record required by the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970, used to record
pertinent information concerning work-related deaths, injuries, and illness. Information includes
annual average employment, total hours worked, nature of business, month of OSHA inspection,
recordable injuries and illness, occupational illness and injury, and title, signature, phone number,
date, and comments of person preparing report. These reports are forwarded to the South Carolina
Department of Labor.

B. Retention: 5 years, then destroy, unless needed for further reference.

12-506.11. Workman's Compensation Records
A. Description: Case files containing records and reports generated as a result of employment
related accidents involving county employees. Information includes date, employee name, address,
claim number, description of injury and accident, date of accident, insurance company.
B. Retention:

(1) Employer’s First Report of Injury: 3 years after settlement, then transfer to employee files.

{2) Other Records: 3 years after settlement, then destroy.

12-506.12, Grievance Hearing Files

A. Description: Materials relating to the reviewing, hearing and disposing of employee grievances
and appeals of adverse personnel actions and disciplinary measures. Information includes letters of
appeal, documentation from department heads, copies of complaints, investigations reports, hearing
transcripts or summaries and related correspondence.

B. Retention: 5 years after settlement of issue, then destroy.

Subarticle 7. Auditor

12-507.1. Auditor's Tax Duplicates
A.Description: Detailed schedule and assessment of all taxable property in the county. Information
includes name and address of taxpayer, number and value of all types of taxable personal property,
number and value of acres and buildings in the country, number and value of lots and buildings in
cities, total personal property, total real property, total tax levy, tax map number, total taxes, and
remarks.
B. Retention:

(1) Pre-1921 Tax Duplicates: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

(2) Post-1920 Tax Duplicates:

{a) When Corresponding Treasurer's Tax Duplicates are Missing: Permanent.
Microfilm optional.
(b) When Corresponding Treasurer's Tax Duplicates Exist: 10 years, then destroy.

24



General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

12-507.2. Auditor's Tax Duplicates (Motor Vehicles)

A. Description: Record of personal property tax assessments for motor vehicles in the county.
Information includes name and address of registered owner, make of vehicle, vehicle identification
number, tag number, district, receipt number, assessed value, and total taxes.

B. Retention: 10 years, then destroy.

12-507.3. Tax Returns

A. Description: Individual returns of all taxable real and personal property in the county. These
returns are used by the county auditor to compile the tax duplicate books each year. Information
includes name and address of taxpayer, school or tax district, city property, country property, personal
property, South Carolina Tax Commission assessments, total, real estate acquired since last return, real
estate transferred or sold since last return, signature of taxpayer, and signature of county auditor.
B. Retention: 5 years, then destroy.

12-507.4. Auditor's Conveyance Books

A. Description: Auditor’s record of county land conveyances which is used for tax assessment and
assessment change purposes. Information includes township, date of sale, date of entry, name of seller,
name of purchaser, number of acres, number of lots, number of buildings, price paid, assessed value,
percentage of valuation, and remarks.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

12-507.5. Vehicle Registration

A.Description: Auditor's copies of vehicle registrations which are used for tax assessment purposes.
Information includes date, license number, serial number, weight, body, model, year make, title
number, county, school district, class, annual fee, name, address, and total.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-507.6. List of Boat Owners

A. Description: Lists printed and distributed by the South Carolina Wildlife and Marine Resources
Department's Division of Boating which include the names and addresses of all boat owners in the
county along with a description of the boats owned by them. Information includes owner’s name, street
address, city, state, zip code, number, make, year, length, hull, and type.

B. Retention: 2 years, then destroy.

12-307.7. Abstracts of Duplicates

A. Description: Auditor's copies of the abstracts which are forwarded to the Comptroller General
each year. These abstracts contain summary totals of the information contained in the auditor's tax
duplicate books.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-507.8. Abstracts of Real Property

A. Description: Auditor's copies of the abstracts which are forwarded to the Comptroller General
each year. These abstracts contain summary totals of real estate returned for taxation in the county.
B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-507.9., Abstracts of Personal Property

A. Description: Auditor’s copies of the abstracts which are forwarded to the Comptroller General
each year. These abstracts contain summary totals of personal property returned for taxation in the
county.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

25



General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

12-507.10. Abstract of Additionals

A. Description: Auditor’s coptes of the abstracts which are forwarded to the Comptroller General
each year. These abstracts contain summary totals of additional taxes assessed and paid in the county.
B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-507.11. Abstracts of Abatements

A. Description: Auditor's copies of the abstracts which are forwarded to the Comptroller General
each year. These abstracts contain summary totals of abatements granted to taxpayers in the county.
B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-507.12. Abstracts of Penalties

A. Description: Auditor's copies of the abstracts which are forwarded to the Comptroller General
each year. These abstracts contain summary totals of penalties imposed upon delinquent taxpayers in
the county.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-507.13. Homestead Exemption Applications

A. Description: Copies of applications filed by persons who have been residents of the state for at
least one year, are sixty-five years of age and over, or are totally and permanently disabled, or are
legally blind who are seeking homestead tax exemptions. Information includes control number, TMS
number, date of application, applicant’s name and address, birth date, social security number, if
property is jointly owned name of joint owner, whether spouse, telephone number of applicant,
location of dwelling, whether permanent home, whether any commercial property or multi-family
dwelling on property, whether mobile home, whether property has been leased or rented in past year
or will be leased or rented during the year for which the homestead is claimed, number of persons who
share ownership ifjointly owned, whether located within a municipality, name of municipality, source
of proof of age, type of disability, signature of applicant, signature of county auditor, date, and
homestead exemption application number.

B. Retention: 3 years after inactive, then destroy.,

12-507.14. Abatements

A. Description: Record of abatements granted to taxpayers in the county. Information includes a
detailed assessment of taxes on an individual's property, both real and personal.

B. Retention:

(1) Abatements for Manufacturing Plants: Permanent. Microfilm optional.
(2) Abatements for other Taxpayers: 10 years, then destroy.

12-507.15. Abstracts of Annual Settlements

A. Description: Auditor's copies of the abstracts which are forwarded to the Comptroller General
each year. The abstracts summarize the annual settlements of the Auditor’s and Treasurer's records.
B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-507.16. Affidavit and Notification of Sales of Motor Vehicles

A. Description: Auditor's copy of the form supplied by automobile dealerships documenting sale
of motor vehicles. Information includes date, amount of purchase, name of dealership, make of car,
and name of buyer.

B. Retention: 1 year, then destroy.

26



@,

General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

12-507.17. Affidavit of Motor Vehicle High Mileage

A. Description: Claim for high mileage discounts on personal property taxes for qualifying vehicles.
Information includes total miles, vehicle make, model, year, identification number, signature of owner,
date filed, and notary statement.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-507.18. Auditor’s Monthly Reports

A. Description: Copies of the Auditor’s monthly reports submitted to the treasurer showing record
of fees collected. Information includes amounts, types of fees collected, and signature of auditor.
B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-507.19. Business Personal Property Returns

A. Description: Record of personal property tax returns for businesses in the county. These are used
by the county auditor to compile the tax duplicate books. Information includes name of owner,
property location, tax district, type of business, cost of furniture, fixtures, and equipment, accumulated
depreciation for income tax purposes, net book value, 10% cost of all items which have depreciated
more than 90%, signature of owner, phone number, and date.

B. Retention: 5 years, then destroy.

12-507.20. Business Personal Property Assessment Records

A. Description: Auditor's copies of personal property assessments made by the South Carolina Tax
Commission for businesses in the county. Information includes file number, document location,
address, business location, school location, furniture and fixture assessments, penalty, grand total, and
date.

B. Retention: 5 years, then destroy.

12-507.21. Supplemental Tax Returns

A. Description: Tax returns that list property tax assessments which were not included on the
original return. The information is the same as the regular tax returns and is contained in the auditor's
tax duplicates.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-507.22. Rollbacks

A. Description: Rollback of tax assessments due to changes in the use of the property to a lower
assessment usage. Information includes parcel number, legal owner, owner's name, address, soil types,
market value, remarks, date and initials, district tax year, assessment, and previous owner.

B. Retention: 5 years, then destroy.

12-507.23. Homestead Exemption Records

A. Description: Records documenting homestead exemptions in the county. Information includes
lists of persons who have applied for the exemption, reports of homestead tax exemptions and property
values, records pertaining to state reimbursement for homestead exemptions, supplemental home-
stead exemption lists, homestead corrections lists, and uncompleted homestead exemptions.

B. Retention: 3 years, or until superseded, then destroy.

27



General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

12-507.24. Military Personnel Automobile Tax Exemptions

A. Description: Tax exemption forms showing vehicles owned by military personnel who are
stationed in the county, but are legal residents of other states and are subject to taxes in the state of legal
residence. Information includes owners name, address, vehicle year, make, model, VIN number, date,
social security nurber, signature of owner, signature of commanding officer.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-507.25. Mobile Home Records

A. Description: Records created by the Auditor pertaining to mobile homes in the county. Types
of records may include mobile home moving permits, mobile home permits, and mobile home titles.
B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-507.26. Refunds

A. Description: Record of refunds extended for real and personal property tax overpayments.
Information includes receipt number, license plate number, vehicle information, name, address,
assessment, refund due amount, check number, dates, and signatures.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-507.27. Property Tax Returns on Aircraft

A. Description: Record of property tax returns on aircraft owners in the county. Information
includes name of registrant, address, owner’s name, purchase date, registration date, aircraft home and
base address, make of aircraft, serial number, model of aircraft, year of aircraft, estimated market value
and signature of person giving information.

B. Retention: 5 years, then destroy.

12-507.28. List of Deceased County Residents

A. Description: Record of deceased county residents over age 17 sent to the Auditor. Lists originate
from the County Probate Judge's Office, Health Department, and Comptroller General. Information
includes name of deceased, social security number, date of death, and address.

B. Retention: 2 years, then destroy.

12-507.29. Address Changes

A. Description: Record of address changes sent by county residents or returned mail by the post
office. Information includes name, old address, and new address.

B. Retention: 2 years, then destroy.

12-507.30. Vehicle Listing

A.Description: Computer printout list of all automobiles in the county. Information includes name,
street, city, state, zip, license number, year, make, body, issue date, type, vehicle ID number, value plus
ten percent, and signatures.

B. Retention: Until superseded, then destroy.

28



@

A
L

General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

Subarticle 8. Treasurer

12-508.1. Treasurer’s Tax Duplicates
A. Description: Schedule of all taxable real and personal property in the county with collections
included. Information in the record is similar to that contained in the auditor’s tax duplicate books with
the exception of the payment date, which is found in the treasurer’s tax duplicate books only.
Information includes name of taxpayer; township or school district; address; date of payment; number
and value of acres, lots, and building; value of all taxable real estate; value of all taxable personal
property; total value of all taxable property; total tax levies; tax map number; and total for collection.
B. Retention
(1) Pre-1921 Tax Duplicates:
(a) When Corresponding Auditor’s Tax Duplicates Exist: Destroy.
(b) When Corresponding Auditor’'s Tax Duplicates are Missing: Permanent.
Microfilm optional.
(2) Post-1920 Tax Duplicates: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

12-508.2. Treasurer’'s Tax Duplicates (Motor Vehicles)

A. Description: Record of personal property tax assessments and collections for motor vehicles in
the county. Information includes name and address of registered owner, make of vehicle, vehicle
identification number, tag number, district, receipt number, assessed value, total taxes, and date of

payment.
B. Retention: 10 years, then destroy.

12-508.3. Tax Receipts

A. Description: Treasurer’s copies of the receipts issued to taxpayers upon payment of county
property taxes. Information includes receipt number, valuation of real property, total real, total
personal, total tax levy, property tax, poll tax, road tax, dog tax, total taxes, penalty, total costs, total,
name, address, location, district, and number and value of acres, lots and buildings.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-508.4. Abstract of Annual Settlements

A. Description: Treasurer’s copies of the abstracts which are forwarded to the Comptroller General
each year. These abstracts summarize the annual settlements of the auditor’s and treasurer's records.
B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-508.5. Abstract of Personal Property
A. Description: Treasurer’s copies of the abstracts which are forwarded to the Comptroller General
each year. These abstracts contain summary totals of personal property returned for taxation in the

county.
B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-508.6. Abstract of Additionals

A. Description: Treasurer's copies of the abstracts which are forwarded to the Comptroller General
each year. These abstracts contain summary totals of additional taxes assessed and paid in the county.
B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

29



General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

12-508.7, Abstract of Executions

A. Description: Treasurer’s copies of the abstracts which are forwarded to the Comptroller General
each year. These abstracts contain summary totals of delinquent taxes that went into execution for
collection by the delinquent tax collector.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-508.8. Abstract of Nulla Bonas

A. Description: Treasurer's copies of the abstracts which are forwarded to the Comptroller General
each year. These abstracts contain summary totals of property in the county for which no taxes could
be collected.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-508.9. Annual Budgets

A. Description: Printed copies of annual budgets showing projected receipts and expenditures from
various offices. Approved budget appropriations are listed for each department.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

12-508.10. Audit Reports

A. Description: Printed reports documenting the annual audit of county funds. These reports,
prepared by an outside accounting firm, are categorized by the various county offices and are further
classified by the funds or accounts to which they relate. Thisseries also includes semiannual and special
audits. Information includes balance sheet, summary of revenues and expenditures, cash balances,
statement of taxes, statement of delinquent taxes, statement of other receipts, statement of fines and
fees.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

12-508.11. General Ledgers
A. Description: One or more series of financial ledgers providing final year-to-date summary
accounting data and a permanent audit trail for all fiscal receipt and disbursement transactions
affecting any and all county funds and accounts, including receipts and expenditures from all revenue
sources, both public and private. For computer generated ledgers, must include annual accounting
code data and computer system documentation needed to access accounting information.
B. Retention:

{1) Computer Generated Ledgers: Permanent. Microfilm.

{2) Non-Computer Generated Ledgers: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

12-508.12. General Cash Books
A. Description: Monthly records of receipts and disbursements of state, county, and school taxes.
Information includes debit (receipts): month, year, date, name, receipt numbers, explanation, state,
county, schools, total; and credit (disbursements): date, name, claim numbers, explanation, state,
county, schools, and total.
B. Retention:

(1) When Corresponding General Ledgers Are Missing: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

(2) When Corresponding General Ledgers Exist: 10 years, then destroy.

30



General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

12-508.13. Banking Records

A. Description: Cancelled checks and deposit slips written by the county along with the statements
issued by the bank. Information includes checks: date, to whom paid, amount, check number,
signature of county treasurer; bank statements: list of checks for one month period, dates, beginning
balance, ending balance; deposit slips: date, amounts of deposits, and total deposit.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-508.14. Receipt Books

A. Description: Copies of receipts issued by the treasurer to persons turning over funds to him.
Information includes date, number, from whomreceived, amount, purpose, and signature of treasurer.
B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-508.15. Cancelled Bonds and Coupons

A. Description: Bonds and interest coupons issued by the county which have matured and been
cancelled. Information includes county, title, amount, interest percentage, date issued, principal due
date, interest payment dates, description, bond number, and authorizing signature.

B. Retention: One bond and one coupon from each series Permanent. Destroy remainder 10 years
after cancellation.

12-508.16. Homestead Exemption Applications

A. Description: Copies of applications filed by persons who have been residents of the state for at
least one year, are sixty-five years of age and over, or are totally and permanently disabled, or are
legally blind who are seeking homestead tax exemption. Information includes control number, TMS
number, date of application, applicant’s name and address, birth date, social security number, if
property is jointly owned name of joint owner, whether spouse, telephone number of applicant,
location of dwelling, whether permanent home, whether any commercial property or multi-family
dwelling on property, whether mobile home, whether property has been leased or rented in past year
or will be leased or rented during the year for which the homestead is claimed, number of persons who
share ownership if jointly owned, whether located within a municipality, name of municipality, source
of proof of age, type of disability, signature of applicant, signature of county auditor, date, and
homestead exemption application number.

B. Retention: 3 years after inactive, then destroy.

12-508.17. Abatements

A. Description: Record of tax assessment reductions for real estate taxes and personal property
which were incorrect or no longer owed. Information includes year, date, receipt number, name,
address account number, district, tax assessment, amount of tax abated, reason for abatement and
authorizing signature.

B. Retention: 5 years then destroy.

12-508.18. Abstract of Delinquent Taxes
A.Description: Treasurer's copies of the abstracts which are forwarded to the Comptroller General
each year. These abstracts contain summary totals of delinquent taxes assessed and paid for one fiscal

year,
B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

31



General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

12-508.19. Abstract of Personal Property
A, Description: Treasurer’s copies of the abstracts which are forwarded to the Comptroller General

each year. These abstracts contain summary totals of personal property returned for taxation in the
county.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-508.20. Bankruptcy Files

A. Description: Files of bankruptcy cases involving property located in the county. Information
includes legal court documents, legal papers, attached signatures, copies of tax assessment on property
and other legal papers. This information is filed with the United States Bankruptcy Court.

B. Retention: 10 years, then destroy.

12-508.21. Delinquent Tax Receipts

A. Description: Receipts for taxes not yet paid by property owners in the county. Information
includes lot number, property number, year delinquent, delinquent amount, tax due, location of
property, and name and address of property owner.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-508.22. Nulla Bonas List

A. Description: Lists of persons owing taxes that could not be collected. Information includes year,
district, number, name, amount, and total.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-508.23. Claims

A.Description: Claims submitted to the Treasurer’s Office requesting refunds of personal or vehicle
taxes. Information includes receipt number, owner name, tax year, millage, property description,
amount of taxes paid, date paid, reason for refund, owners’ signature, mailing address, telephone
number, social security number, refund information and signature of approving authority.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-508.24. Daily Abstract of Property and Poll Tax Collected

A. Description: Daily record of property and poll taxes collected within each school district.
Information includes date, school district number, name of person, amounts paid, bank deposit
amount and name of bank.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-508.25. Investment Records

A. Description: Reports all investments made by the county. Information includes type of
investment, fund number, account number, document number, purchase date, and remarks. This
information is summarized in the General Ledger.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

12-508.26. Magistrate Reports of Fines and Fees

A. Description: Magistrates’ monthly report to the county treasurer of fines and fees collected by
their offices. Information inciudes record of fees, names, dates, criminal and traffic dockets with
amounts, offenses, officers, dispositions, and receipt numbers.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

32



&

O

General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

12-508.27. Rollbacks

A.Description: Rollback tax differences computed when use of property changes upon conveyance
of property to a new owner. Information includes name/address, tax map number, tax district, date,
class, percent, acres/lots, number of improvements, assessed value, years, market value, use value,
value tax, rollback tax, year.

B. Retention: 5 years, then destroy.

12-508.28. Refund for Overpayment of Taxes

A. Description: Record of refunds granted for overpayment of taxes. Information includes date,
receipt number, refund amount, name and address of taxpayer, and description/purpose of refund.
B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-508.29. Vehicle Tax Collection Register

A. Description: Record of taxes collected on vehicles owned by county residents. Information
includes date, receipt number, name, district, levy, date, make, body, identification number, taxes and
total taxes.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

Subarticle 9. Tax Collector

12-509.1. Tax Execution Books
A.Description: Record of delinquent taxes turned over for execution. Information includes number
of tax execution, name of defaulter, date of entry, amount of taxes, and penalties collected. Later
volumes may contain property valuations.
B. Retention:
(1) Pre-1901 Tax Execution Books: Permanent. Microfilm optional.
(2) Post-1900 Tax Execution Books:
(a) When Corresponding Auditor’s and Treasurer's Tax Duplicates Are Both Missing:
Permanent. Microfilm optional.
(b) When Corresponding Auditor's and Treasurer's Tax Duplicates Exist: 10 years, then
destroy.

12-509.2. Delinquent Tax Sales Book

A. Description: Documents the seizure, levy, and sale of property for the non-payment of taxes.
Information includes name of delinquent taxpayer, address, description of property seized, record of
taxes due on described property, district, acres or lots, buildings, value, and amount due, total, date
ofauction, date made out, signature of tax collector, dates advertised, total taxes, purchaser, advertising
costs, bid price, amount overbid, mileage costs, redeemed by, date, auctioneer, deed made, total tax,
and costs.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

12-509.3. Abatement Lists

A. Description: List maintained by the tax collector of those county taxpayers receiving abatements
on their taxes. Information includes record type, date, receipt number, abatement reason, name, and
amount.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

33



General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

12-509.4. Delinquent Tax Digest

A. Description: Schedule of all taxable real estate and personal property in the county which has
not been collected and is now considered delinquent. Information includes name and address of
property owner, description of property, tax year, receipt number, map and parcel number, number
of acres, number of lots, number of buildings, assessment value, and total tax amount.

B. Retention: 10 years, then destroy,

12-509.5. Nulla Bonas

A. Description: Record documenting a request for change, addition, or deletion of taxes. Informa-
tion includes date, taxpayer’'s name and address, year, receipt number, new receipt number, reason
for change, old/new receipt number, ariginal/new assessment, initials of staff person working with
original receipts, date and owners signature.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-509.6. Delinquent Tax Settlement Records

A. Description: Copies of paid tax executions issued to taxpayers upon payment of taxes and
penalties. Information includes tax execution receipt, name and address of owner, description of
property, tax receipt number, taxes and penalties due, total amount due.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

Subarticle 10. Tax Assessor

12-510.1. Property Record Cards

A. Description: Cards arranged by tax map sheet, block, and lot numbers which record past and
present ownership, appraisal information, as well as current assessments for each parcel of property
in the county. Information includes property use, record number, tax district, tax map sheet number,
block number, lot number, location, subdivision or parcel number, lot size, ownership, address, deed
references, sales price, aerial photo number, sheet, parcel, acreage, plat reference, assessment, acreage
per planimeter.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

12-510.2. Aerial Photographs

A. Description: Aerial photographs of all real estate in the county. These photographs are used by
the assessor’s office for composing the tax maps.

B. Retention: Permanent.

12-510.3. Tax Maps

A. Description: Originals and copies of maps graphically representing each parcel of property in
the county. Information includes location, boundaries of individual parcels, tax map sheet numbers,
block numbers, lot numbers, revisions, and scale.

B. Retention: Permanent.

12-510.4. Soil Maps

A. Description: Maps used by assessors to help determine assessment values for agricultural real
property to be valued based on use. Information includes soil map numbers and contour lines with
code numbers that are used to identify soil types.

B. Retention: Until superseded or no longer used, then destroy.

34



General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

12-510.5. Applications for Special Assessment on Agricultural Real Property

A. Description: This series contains applications from those granted special tax assessments on real
property used for agricultural purposes. Information includes name shown on property tax record,
social security number, tax map sheet reference, location of tract of land, number of acres, tax district,
purpose of use, portion used for non-agricultural purposes, signature of owner or agent, date, and
information on soil class of timber and crop land.

B. Retention: Until superseded or no longer valid, then destroy.

12-510.6. Appraisal Records
A. Description: Used to determine appraisal values of all parcels of land in the county. Information
includes parcel number, building, heat area, heat pump, electric, baseboard, add-ons, fireplace, garage,
carport, basement finished/unfinished, yard improvements, concrete paving, asphalt paving, parcel
identification number, class, type, date of appraisal, lump sum adjustment.
B. Retention:

(1) Non-Computer Generated Appraisal Records: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

(2) Computer Generated Appraisal Records: Permanent. Microfilm.

12-510.7. Property Transfer Records

A. Description: A record of property conveyances in the county, used to update tax records.
Information includes name, address of seller and buyer, map number, deed reference, plat book
reference number, sales price, amount sold (acreage, lots, buildings) and school district.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-510.8. Appeals of Assessment

A.Description: Record of appeals and proceedings created as the result of an appeal from a property
owner concerning the amount of taxes assessed. Information includes name, tax map number, address,
and reason for appeal.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-510.9. Assessment Change

A. Description: Record of corrections made on assessment tax errors. Information includes tax map
number, name/address of property owner, location of property, mobile home class/appraisal/
assessment, class, acres/lots, appraisal acres or lots, improvements.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-510.10. Notice of Classification, Appraisal, and Assesment

A. Description: Records notifying taxpayers of property assessments. Information includes market
value, ratio, assessment, tax map number, prior market value, percent of increase, property location,
subdivision, legal description, mailing address, reason for change, tax district, and date of notice,
B. Retention: 1 year, then destray.

12-510.11. Rollbacks

A. Description: Used in creating the rollback tax bill which records a reduction in property taxes
due to changes in the use of the property to a lower assessment usage. Information includes names,
dates, map numbers, acreage, market value, use value, assessments, roll back amounts, and applicable
year.

B. Retention: 5 years, then destroy.

35



General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

12-510.12, Multiple Lot Discount Applications

A. Description: Applications submitted for a multiple lot discount. Information includes tax year,
name of subdivision, total number of lots, total number of lots unsold, plat reference, deed book, deed
book page, location, tax maps, tax district, improvements, mills per lot, and financing.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-510.13. Mobile Home Records

A. Description: Records created by the Assessor pertaining to mobile homes in the county. Type
of records may include mobile home license applications, mobile home moving permits, mobile home
record cards, mobile home decal applications, mobile home transfers, mobile home listings, mabile
home values lists, and mobile home assessment forms.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

Subarticle 11. Building/Planning and Development

12-511.1. Plans and Specifications
A. Description: Consists of blueprints and other graphic illustrations of designs submitted by
contractors for the construction, reconstruction or alteration of buildings within the county. These
plans and accompanying specifications are submitted to ensure compliance with the county's building
codes. Documents include site plan, scale of floor plan, elevation plan, electrical plan, typical wall
section and foundation, and specifications.
B. Retention:
(1) Public Building Projects: Permanent. Microfilm optional.
(2) Other Building Projects: 1 year after issuance of certificate of occupancy, then destroy, unless
needed for further reference.

12-511.2. Building Permits

A. Description: Documents permission granted by the county to construct buildings that comply
with established building codes. Information includes permit number, name and address of real estate
owner, location of building, type of work (i.e. new, alteration, repair, etc.) description of building, name
of architect and of contractor, tax map number, zoning classification, water system, usage of property
and signature of zoning administrator.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

12-511.3. Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes

A. Description: Minutes of Planning and Zoning Commission meetings which include written
descriptions of the administrative business conducted. Information includes dates of meetings, names
of members present, matters discussed, and agenda packets.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

12-511.4. Maps, Blueprints, and Drawings
A. Description: Maps, blueprints, and drawings submitted for building projects under construction.
Information includes blueprints, maps, and drawings for commercial and residential projects.
B. Retention:
(1) Blueprints and/or Sepia for Public Building Projects: Permanent. Microfilm.

(2) Other Maps and Drawings for Public Building Projects: Permanent. Microfilm optional.
(3) Other Maps, Blueprints, and Drawings: Until no longer needed for reference, then destroy.

36



O

General Recards Retention Schedules for County Records

12-511.5. Permits — Gas, Electrical, Mechanical, Plumbing

A. Description: Records documenting permission granted by the county to perform electrical,
mechanical, plumbing and gas work that complies with codes. Information includes application form,
date, issued by, permit number, TMS number, decal number, fees, land owner, acreage, tax district,
address of applicant, phone number, site address, directions, subdivision, business name, lot, block,
type of work, heating/cooling, type of fuel, contractor, state license number, phone number, cost,
completion date, signature of owner, contract or agent.

B. Retention: 3 years after completion of project, then destroy.

12-511.6. Sign Permits

A. Description: Records documenting permission granted by the county to erect a sign. Information
Includes application form, date, issued by, permit number, site address, business name, phone number,
cost, completion date and signature of owner.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-511.7. Septic Tank Permits

A. Description: Documents permission granted by the county to builders or developers for installing
septic tank systems that meet the county's building codes. Information includes tank size, size of
drainfills, and property location.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-511.8. Inspection Records

A. Description: Documents inspections conducted to buildings under construction within the
county to insure compliance with county building codes. Information includes builder’s representative
requesting each inspection, date performed, outcome of inspection, date completed, date utilities
released, and notes from office staff to inspector.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-511.9. Subdivision Files

A. Description: Records documenting the planning and approval stages in the development of a
subdivision in the county. Information includes subdivision plats, correspondence and approvals from
the Planning Commission.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

12-511.10. Zoning and Variance Materials

A. Description: Materials relating to zoning and variance requests within the county. Information
includes copy of request, notes, resclutions passed, maps, charts, and opposition.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

Subarticle 12. Veterans Affairs

12-512.1. Index to Veterans Files

A. Description: Serves as a finding aid to the Veterans Files. The index is arranged alphabetically
by name of veteran and contains the following information: name, address, service number, date of
entry into service, discharge date, and numerical references for veterans files.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

37



General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

12-512.2. Veterans Files

A. Description: Records used to assist ex-servicemen in securing the benefits to which they are
entitled under the provisions of federal legislation and under the terms of insurance policies issued by
the federal government for their benefit. Various types of forms account for most of the documents
contained in these files although some correspondence is included.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

Subarticle 13. NMaintenance Garage/Fleet Maintenance

12-513.1. Maintenance and Repair Records

A. Description: Record of maintenance and repairs performed on county owned vehicles.
Information includes department, FRS class code, vehicle type/number, date in, time in, odometer
reading, date completed, time completed, down time, hours, activity type, year, make, engine size,
vehicle identification number, model, license number, transmission type, repair order instruction,
mechanic number, hours, labor charge, labor total, driver comments, driver employee number, parts
issued record, petroleum products issued, parts total, labor total, grand total, approved by, part number
and description, price, accessories, total accessories, outside repairs, total outside repairs, vendor costs,
name, address, city, customer order number, date, phone, order written by, terms, description of work,
amount, gallons of gas, quarts of oil, pounds of grease, total labor, total parts, accessories, tax, total.
B. Retention: Until vehicle is disposed of or no longer in use, then destroy.

12-513.2. Fuel System Reports

A. Description: Report of the regular and diesel fuel dispensed at the county fuel depot. Information
includes equipment number, date, time, employee number, card number, mileage, product code,
quantity, expense charged and totals for equipment numbers.

B. Retention: 2 years, then destroy.

12-513.3. Work Orders

A. Description: Work orders for the repair and maintenance of vehicles and equipment. Informa-
tion includes type of service requested, parts and labor required.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-513.4. County Vehicle Accident Files

A. Description: Documents accidents involving county vehicles. Information includes dates of
accident, department involved, parties involved, vehicle county number, damage estimates, and
settlements.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

Subarticle 14. Library

12-514.1. Library Board Meeting Minutes and Agendas

A. Description: Record of proceedings at meetings of the Library Board. Information includes dates
and times of meetings, members present, informational items, Director’s Report Summary, Public
Service Report Summary, financial information, policy approvals and motions made by the Board.
B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

38



O

General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

12-514.2. Patron List

A. Description: List of all library card holders. Information includes name and address, telephone
number, place of employment (if applicable), school (if applicable), and signature of cardholder or
parent.

B. Retention: Until superseded, then destroy.

12-514.3. Shelf List

A. Description: Record of each volume in the library. Information includes call number, author,
title, publication date, acquisition date, description of book, and type book.

B. Retention: Until superseded, then destroy.

Subarticle 15. Emergency Services

12-515.1. Patient Care Form

A. Description: Records consist of DHEC forms completed by the attending paramedic listing the
drug usage and other relevant data on the emergency call. Also includes payment authorization/billing
forms. Records may be used by attorneys in litigation. Information includes patient identification,
address, sex, race, date of birth, hospital transported to, disposition, safety equipment, patient status,
incident location, preliminary impression, treatment procedure, drug used, site of trauma, advanced
procedures, vital signs, comments, chief complaint, observation at scene, time record, DHEC permit
number, auto plate number, attendants signature and billing information.

B. Retention: 10 years, then destroy.

12-515.2. Dispatch Cards for 911 Emergency Calls

A. Description: Forms documenting emergency calls dispatched to the Fire Department, the
Sheriff's Department, the Police Department or to Emergency Medical Services. Information includes
dispatch number, location, incident type, caller name, call back number, unit and dispatch information
or unit and response information.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-515.3. 911 Phone Logs

A. Description: Record of incoming calls to 911. Information includes name, address, phone
number, time and date of call.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-515.4. Radio Logs

A. Description: Log of the calls received, calls dispatched, and other radio traffic. Information
includes date; time; verbal communications; complainant’s name, address and phone number; and
responding officer’s unit number.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-515.5. EMS Accounts Receivable

A. Description: Record of billing to health insurance companies and uninsured patients for
emergency medical service. Information includes date, account number, charges, amount paid,
balances, type of service, description of illness, ordered by, total miles driven, insurance company
information, medicare information, medicaid information, transported from, transported to, para-
medic, EMT, driver, and service/supplies.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

39



General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

Subarticle 16. Animal Control

12-516.1. Animal Complaint Forms

A. Description: Record of animal complaints and action taken. Information includes request made
by (name, address, city), directions, nature of complaint, actions taken, date, phone number, and
complaint number.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

12-516.2. Animal Control Release Form

A. Description: Records documenting the release of all animals from the owner to the Animal
Control Office relinquishing all rights of ownership to the animal. This contract specifies that after 24
hours the animal will become the property of the county. Information includes name, address,
signature, date, type of animal, breed, sex, animal's name (if any), reason for giving up animal, stray
or unwanted and temperament.

B. Retention: 5 years, then destroy.

12-516.3. Adoption Agreement

A. Description: Record of animals adopted from Animal Control. Information includes adopter’s
information: name, address and phone number of person adopting the animal; Animal information:
age, description, breed and sex of animal; adoption rules; date; signature; and fee.

B. Retention: 5 years, then destroy.

12-516.4. Euthanasia Drug Usage

A. Description: Records used to track the amount of drugs used per animal, as well as number of
euthanized animals. Information includes date, number of cc’s used, weight of animal, type of animal,
control number, initials and time of day.

B. Retention: 5 years, then destroy.

12-516.5. Animal Violation Ticket

A. Description: Notification of violation of the Animal Control Ordinance. Information includes
type of viclation, violation date, time, location, breed of animal, color of animal, officer’s name,
owner’s name and address, signature of officer and date.

B. Retention: 3 years, then destroy.

Subarticle 17. Voter Registration and Elections

12-517.1. Ballots

A. Description: Consists of printed ballots from general elections. Information includes name of
candidate, office running for, and space for write-in candidate.
B. Retention:

(1) Marked Ballots for Uncontested Elections: 2 years after certification of election, then destroy.

(2} Marked Ballots for Contested Elections: 2 years after decision on contested results is made, then
destroy.

(3) Unmarked Ballots: 30 days alter election, then destroy.

40



PN

General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

12-517.2. Poll Managers Applications and Tests

A. Description: Record of individuals seeking position of certifled poll manager, as well as poll
manager test and test score. Information includes name, birth date, mailing address, telephone
number, occupation, precinct, voter registration number, social security number, political party,
applicant signature, test score, and date of application.

B. Retention: § years after date of test, then destroy.

12-517.3. Petitions and Petition Summary Sheets

A. Description: Used to nominate candidates for office, to certify political parties, to propose an
ordinance, to call for referenda on ordinances, to call for a referendum, or to change the existing form
of government. Information includes petition: county, purpose of petition, signature and address of
voters, registration certificate of voter, and precinct of voter; and petition receipt: name of candidate,
name of office, date of election, number pages, total number signatures, date submitted, time
submitted, signature of election commission member or clerk, number of signatures needed for
petition approval, number of signatures found to be valid, number of signatures submitted on petition,
signature of member of registration board or clerk, and date.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

12-317.4. Absentee Ballot Requests (Applications for Absentee Ballots)

A. Description: Documents official requests for sending out absentee ballot applications. Informa-
tion includes request number, date, party, name of voter, voter's address, home address, precinct
number, registration number, name of requester and address, name/address of voter's relative, phone
number, comments, application number and date mailed.

B. Retention: 2 years after date of election, then destroy.

12-517.5. Election Material (Used)

A. Description: Materials used by the election commission during an election to document the
collection of ballot box keys and to verify the election was run correctly. Information includes plastic
key to ballot boxes, spoiled ballots, ballot box verification form name/address of verifier, red seal
number (plastic key), type of election, name of witness, date, and computer diskettes used to tabulate
election results.

B. Retention: 2 years after date of election, then destroy.

12-517.6. South Carolina Election Commission Voter List

A. Description: Listing of all registered voters in the county. Information includes election number,
election date, county code, precinct code, names, certificate numbers, addresses, social security
numbers, date of birth and descriptions.

B. Retention: 4 years after date of election, then destroy.

12-517.7. Inactive Voter List (Outdated Voter List)

A. Description: Listing of outdated registrations. Information includes names, certificate number,
address, social security number, date of birth, occupation, registration, date, sex, race, height, weight
and color of hair and eyes.

B. Retention: 2 years after date of election, then destroy

12-517.8. Election Results

A. Description: Computer printout listing the precinct totals for candidates for political office.
Information includes number of votes for each candidate and the total votes cast for election.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm,

41



General Records Retention Schedules for County Records

12-517.9. Federal Post Card Application and Registration

A. Description: Post cards printed by the federal government used to mail information in to Voter
Registration. Information includes name, social security number, home address, mailing address, date
of birth and signature.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

12-517.10. Political Maps

A. Description: Maps created by the Research and Statistical Services Office showing political
boundaries and political numbers of political subdivisions.

B. Retention: Until superseded, then destroy.

12.517.11. Computer Printout Tallies

A. Description: Computer printouts generated by the State Election Commission showing a
breakdown by race of the statistical data on various subdivisions. Information includes Decode, School
Tally, City Council Tally, County Council Tally, Congressional District Tally, Senate District Tally,
House District Tally, and Race Breakdown.

B. Retention: 10 years, then destroy.

12-517.12. Application to Register to Vote

A. Description: Documents persons registering to vote in county elections. Records are active and
inactive; inactive-deceased; inactive-convicted; inactive-moved; and inactive-over 5 years. Informa-
tion includes name, sex, race, social security number, address, date of birth, certificate number, and
precinct assigned to.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

Subarticle 18. Coroner

12-518.1. Index to Inquisitions

A. Description: Serves as a finding aid to the Coroner’s inquisition records. Information includes
name of deceased, date of death, date of inquisition, and reference number of inquisition.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

12-518.2. Inquisitions Records

A. Description: Records Coroner's inquests into sudden, violent, or unusual deaths. Information
includes date of inquest, name of deceased, ages, cause, and manner of death.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

12-518.3. Case Files

A. Description: Contains some or all of the following documents relating to deaths reported to the
Coroner: coroner's report, law enforcement report, autopsy report, evidence report, burial permits,
death certificate, forensic request and report, investigative notes, photographs, medical and dental

records, subpoenas, and newspaper clippings. Information includes names and addresses, times, dates,
places, signatures, and titles.

B. Retention: Permanent. Microfilm optional.

42



